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Characteristics of the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange’)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquires, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders:

Venturepharm Laboratory Limited (the group) faced the most
difficult and challenging year in history in 2013. As there was a
significant change in the Chinese Government’s policies and
regulations in new drug approval, especially the newly released
GMP (Drug Good Manufacturing Practice) regulation which
led to the increase in rigidity and cautiously in government
approval and increased the timing and risk in new drug
development, the group had to start a business reconstruction in
2011 and terminated all PDS projects in 2013. The Group
abandoned PDS business and focused on clinical services and
post-marketing clinical services.

Strategic and Operational Highlights

The contracted pharmaceutical research(CRO) market had sharply
extended from discovery to clinical services and post-marketing
clinical services. The main market of CRO industry will be clinical
services and post-marketing clinical services. The group had
adjusted the strategy position to meet the market change. Our
strategy will changed from integrated services to focusing on
clinical services and post-marketing clinical services.

The group is a major clinical services organization in China that
provides global clinical, preclinical and regulatory affair services.
It is a leader in oncology, hepatitis, vaccine, CNS, cardiovascular,
hematology, diabetes, allergy and immunology. The Company
heavily invests in establishing clinical research operation units to
drive the future growth of the Company:

VPS Clinical is international listed company that take a
leading position in clinical trail base in China. VPS Clinical
focuses on innovation drug and MCT(Multiple Center
Clinical Trial), it is a clinical trail research organization
famous in greater, faster, better and more economic.

. VPRA-Porsche Center, Safe arrival at full speed ahead,
First and Best in Class for ten years.

. VPS-mart Postmarketing,clinical research institute of drug
postmarketing,the leader for clinical research and medical

services in Asia.

. CNS-VPS Institute, Clinical Research Institute of
Neuropsychiatry, pain treatment center.

. Vacc-VPS intitute, Vaccine clinical research base in China.

2013 F W&
ANNUAL REPORT

TR SRR -

20134 AR R IR — . b EE R ERER
15§ 075 ST RIIRA Y ) 2 Sl T A a1 ¢ gl o L=
RERRZ201 AFBIAETE «ZEM AR R EE R (20105F1%
F) > EARMAREEE R, FEErTE R mEgm A, 2
HIHE201 1AEBIASEH A AR 20135 44 I T 23 PDSHER -

IR

B0 8 BT M i 355 T AR B ) i A A e 2 B AT
ETRERRIBITS, ARAREEYIHTEE M T B IS
KB RH . AEEMRETISAE —E R ML, BT
SERLT HCHIB, Ase Bl CH B ITICRNE , EHRE
FTEAE R PRATFTA_L TR ER AR TT 1l

AR PR TR AR —, REAEEERE AR
W, (e, P, B REMRRAS. LRSI, .
BRI IR SR B R e AL A B Y
PR N 2R AT S R AR LA AR AR SE B AR IR -

« BYEE4 (VPS Clinical) &7E 5 A A IR H- 4 E,
HAWE%EHMAI. VPS Clinical 351E T8I 57257 5 i &
L ERRIFSE & —R UL, th, iF, EEBHTH
[ R AT

+ ARIFEA (VPRA-Porsche) BB /ATE] “AlE
Sele A EE” 105 Bl B T H .

. EATEE (VPS-mart Postmarketing) T E R
W FEIE , ar I b T A A R 5 A B AR R 1
A

« EHEW4 (CNS-VPS Institute) B ACKS RS S AR BF
5% KRR D

. e R AT R (Vace-VPS) .

EemuEXARAA

3



2013 FF EH & I‘ﬁﬁg Mﬁﬁg 2013 E EEW

ANNUAL REPORT CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS ANNUAL REPORT
«  Onc-VPS, Cancer and AIDS clinical research centre. o BRESRIEREFURIEHL (Onc-vPs) o Year ended 31 December
MET_HA=1T—HILFE
. Diab-VPS, clinical research Centre of Endocrinology and . EEE2NOWEERFETRE (Diab-VPS) . 2013 2012
Diabetes. —HF = e =S
RMB’000 RMB’000
. CV-VP Cardiovascular Pacific-Asia clinical research o RHEE A0 I R AT R 5 B AT ANE#FIT
center.
Results B
. SAS-Venturepharm data management and medical . SASHE AR R FIE R L Revenue g 14,931 28,688
statistics center. (Loss)/ Profit for the year FERNEER) #F) (31,019) 3,118
Exciting Future A NHEIAHR Assets and Liabilities HWELAME
Total Assets G PE 18,222 41,471
Looking ahead, we remain confident that we will be at the  BEEAN, EMBERMMIERIRIMIIRHE R Total Liabilities Bk 142,847 135,658
forefront in capitalizing upon the global outsourcing opportunity ~— FAHEEr, BAER, EERIH .. HEIBZETEFAR
as it unfolds. The Chinese pharmaceutical industry is experiencing ~ JE# — I EH LS, EHEARMERLDE. LMATAH Shareholders’ equity i (124,791) (94,344)
consolidation amongst key players, a trend which is expected to  E{% /), (LT ERETENSEEMA, FRAMEBIEA
gain momentum in the future. While striving unceasingly to & i B A MBS 2y BOR RO 1. For the year ended 31 December 2013, consolidated 1.  BE-S—=F+-H=+—HIHERAEmE
exercise strong leadership in the industry in China, we remain turnover of the Group amounted to RMB 14,931,000 BB S AR 14,931,0007C, B FE— [
firmly committed to unlocking shareholder value through the representing a decrease of 48% compared with RMB =z BB H) N EH28,688,00070 R FE#148%
delivery of high quality service solutions. 28,688,000 of last year.
2. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the loss before 2. BE F-=F+ _HA=1+—HILFEAREEH
In closing, I would like to thank the management and all of our  Hf%, FEBAFEHTIE. Hal. BEHOET. HME income tax of the Group was RMB 30,966,000 R BT IR %\ B#30,966,0007T, T % —
employees for their dedication and commitment. On behalf of  FRFEEE (R EL MM FF. RIS EE compared with profit of RMB 3,231,000 of last year. —E R AR AT FE 2 4 A RS 231 00078

everyone at Venturepharm, we extend our sincerest appreciation SRS B TR, AR B ERER.
to our sharcholders for their continuing repose of confidence inthe MM E SO, B m P BRI 2 iRk
Company. We will deliver improved value in 2013 and the years

to come. We look forward to your ongoing support and to sharing

this dynamic growth phase of our journey with you.

By order of the Board REHG

William Xia Guo HE

Chairman ESi

29 July 2014 R -EEEH - +RE
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RESULTS

The consolidated total comprehensive loss in 2013 was RMB
31,019,000, representing a decrease of RMB 34,137,000
compared with last year. The decrease was primarily due to
making impairment losses to comply with prudent principle and

changing the PDS business strategy.

The consolidated turnover amounted to RMB 14,931,000 representing
a decrease of 48% compared with RMB 28,688,000 of last year.
The 2013 consolidated turnover included approximately RMB
13,958,000 was derived from contracted clinical research services
(VPS) and approximately RMB 973,000 from other medical service
In terms of revenue structure, the revenue of VPS amounted to
93% of the total revenue, which was increased by 36% compared
with that of last year.

The overall gross profit was RMB 5,021,000 and gross profit margin
was 34%, compared to RMB 12,452,000 and 43% respectively in
last year, representing a decrease of RMB 7,431,000 in gross
profit and a decrease of 9% in gross profit margin. The decrease
was primarily due to the termination of the PDS(Pharmaceutical
Develop Services) project in 2013 and brought a change in
revenue structure. As there was a significant change in the
Chinese Government’s policies and regulations in new drug
approval, especially the newly released GMP (Drug Good
Manufacturing Practice) regulation which led to the increase in
rigidity and cautiously in government approval and increased the
timing and risk in new drug development, The group terminated
all PDS projects in 2013.

The consolidated general and administrative expenses were RMB
31,102,000 representing an increase about RMB 7,001,000
compared with RMB 24,101,000 of last year. The increase was
primarily due to the following reasons: Impairment on WIP was
about RMB 10,202,000 in 2013 representing a increase of RMB
3,549,000 compared with 2012. Research & development
expenses increased about RMB 2,822,000 since the management
closed the PDS project line during the year and those were
recognized as expense in 2013 instead of cost of sales before.

COVERIBLE NOTES

On 10 September 2007, Venturepharm Laboratories Limited,
issued notes of an aggregate principal amount of CHF15,000,000
(the “Notes™), which was expired in 9 September 2012. On 4
September 2012, the Noteholders passed the Resolution to extend
the maturity date of the Notes to 10 September 2015 and to alter
the coupon applicable in the extended tenor from 3.5% to 4.0%.

| VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The change in fair value of the convertible notes during the year
resulted in a loss from changes in fair value of approximately
RMB 3,943,000 in 2013 (2012 gain: approximately
RMB16,283,000), which has been recorded as “loss / gain on
revaluation of convertible notes” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Interest of approximately RMB 4,108,000 (2012: RMB
3,715,000) has been recorded in the statement of comprehensive
income in respect of the convertible notes for the year ended 31
December 2013.

At 31 December 2013, the carrying amounts and fair value of the
convertible notes for the Group amounted approximately of RMB
95.479.000 (2012: RMB 91,875,000).

On 26 May 2014, the Company entered into a term sheet (" Term
Sheet") with certain holders of the Convertible Notes who hold
the majority of the voting rights attached to the Convertible Notes
(the "Majority Noteholders"). Pursuant to the terms of the Term
Sheet, all parties have agreed to settle all claims and mutually
release each other from any further liabilities or obligations under
the Convertible Notes. More details will be negotiated with
Majority Noteholderso

Subsequently, the Company has undergone commercial
negotiations to rectify the authority of the Majority Noteholders
to settle the Convertible Notes with the Company for itself and on
behalf of all Noteholders. A supplementary Settlement and
Mutual Release Agreement ("Supplementary Agreement") is
currently being negotiated and we expect to sign the
Supplementary Agreement shortly.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO

During the year, although the company incurred consolidated
loss, the Group maintained a sound prudent liquidity risk
management, and had sufficient cash to meet the need of its
business development.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s current liabilitics exceeded
its current assets and its total liabilities exceeded its total assets by
approximately RMB131,906,000 (2012: net current liabilities of
approximately RMB11,928,000) and approximately
RMB124,625,000 (2012: net liabilities of approximately RMB
94,187,000 ) respectively.
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Meanwhile, considering the working capital and long term fund
demand for future development, the Group will consider to raise
funds through bank loans, issuance of new shares, convertible
notes, and issuance of new debits, etc.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year, the Group's transactions were substantially
denominated in Renminbi ("RMB"). The Group closely monitors
its foreign currency risk from time to time and will use appropriate
hedging when necessary.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Aiming at long-term development and based on its business
transformation strategy of transforming from a leading technology
transfer supplier to an enterprise integrating pharmaceutical
development and products commercialization services, the Group
continued to expand its product lines and accelerate the
establishment of the marketing network so as to rapidly capture its
market share.

The Group has managed to establish a comprehensive value-added
business mode for whole value chains such as Clinical Research
Service (VPS), regulatory affair (RA) service and post market
service (PMS), thereby enhancing the long-term profitability and
risk resistance capability of the Group.

SALES AND MARKETING

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group had signed 8
new contracts with contract value of approximately RMB
5,072,943 representing a decrease of 90% compared to RMB
51,989,000 in 2012 . Those contracts will generate stable revenue
for the Group. The decrease was primaily due to the adjustment of
marketing strategy. As there was a significant change in the
Chinese Government’s policies and regulations in new drug
approval, especially the newly released GMP regulation which led
to the increase in rigidity and cautiously in government approval
and increased the timing and risk in new drug development, The
group terminated all PDS projects in 2013.

The Group continued its investment in the enhancement of
marketing capability and the expansion of market network, and
introduced new technologies in the domestic market under the
brand of Venturepharm while striving to establish and expand
overseas markets under the brand of VPS-CRO. During the year,
the Group not only focused on business expansion, but also paid
more attention to the enhancement of brand value and the
improvement of professional capability, aiming at becoming a
comprehensive and reliable technology and service provider with
the most prestigious brand and leading technologies.

| VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Clinical Research Service (VPS)

Taken clinical study as the prime focus, the Group has established
the most integrated service in the country, which provides a series
of services ranging from phase I clinical and bioequivalence
studies, phase II-III clinical studies, and phase IV post-marketing
clinical study, to data management and medical statistics, and
medical administration related service. Meanwhile, the Group makes
a great efforts to improve the professional capability involving the
above mentioned services and has preliminarily established 13
professional research institutions including Venturepharm-CBI
phase I clinical research center, VPS-mart phase IV clinical
research and academic promotion center, SAS-Venturepharm data
management and medical statistics center, VP-Porsche RA service
center, OHH-VP Pacific-Asia clinical research institution for
oncology, TangXi-VP Pacific-Asia clinical research institution for
Diabetes, CNSVP Psychoneurologic and pain management
Pacific-Asia clinical research institution, CV-VP Cardiovascular
Pacific-Asia clinical research center, AIDS and hepatitis
Pacific-Asia clinical research institution, DermNova Pacific-Asia
clinical research institution for dermatosis and gynecologic
disease and TCM-VP clinical research center for natural drug and
traditional Chinese medicine, etc.

In the meantime, the Group has built a nation-wide network with
bases in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou and offices in over 30
provincial capital cities for clinical monitoring and academic
promotion, covering over 80% hospitals which have been
authorized to conduct clinical research. The Group has the capacity
of operating more than 60 phase I and BE projects each year and
conducting 50 phase II-III clinical projects simultaneously.
Meanwhile, the Group is able to carry out 4 phase I'V clinical trials
with large sample size (2,000 subjects) at the same period.

PROSPECTS

To capitalize on the opportunity of the increased demand of global
Ré&D outsourcing market, the Group has made the best efforts to
improve its service capacities and performance in R&D
outsourcing services by providing fully integrated pharmaceutical
services which Clinical Research Service (VPS), regulatory affair
(RA) service and post market service (PMS). In the meantime, the
Group believes that as the Government further standardizes and
implements its supervision, the market environment will become
more favorable to the Group. Meanwhile, the investment from
Chinese Government into the scientific research of biologic and
pharmaceutical technology will stimulate greatly to the R&D
service market. The upcoming new booming age of the
pharmaceutical industry will not only present the Group with rare
and precious business opportunities, but also considerable return

for the shareholders.

2013 F WA
ANNUAL REPORT

ERRBR SR B (VPS)

2452 B A6 R P S WY AR DRATF T I AR Y
IRB2EH, EIEIE R S S B 5T, - K
5T, VIS ETiEERIRISY, ERE BB, 2
BIRBREE—RYIRE; FRE & L3Ry K
[MEZERES), PRV 2CBl W ARHFRHL. #
A HGRF(VPSmart) T B ER RO X R BHEE DL SAS-H
AYRME R N B A T REFE 4 (VP-Porsche RA)EE
BCEHF 0 RIE A (OHH-VP)FEAE oi K B RO 7T
R E S A s KRR 5 . B A (CNSVP) RS # # g e
KERRBAREE . SREL2KMESE (CNSVP-Pain
managament)ﬁ%ﬁ)iﬁ\ B4 (Vace-VP) Hi KBS FRIFGT
Be. FH#b#20I0E (cv-vp) HKBKBRS L. H
3 (R ATR) ERERRBIFERE. 83X H 42 (DermNova
) BLRE MR R IRB AR . W4 (TCM-VP) KIREE
B BRI 58 0 55 1 38 S SE T ST

[, SR EE T LALR. B BEM AdEH, K
3025 )25 3 T SR ST R 10 4 I 4 B R B Y R0 e
B ; B F80% L BRI AR ERETTEE KIS BR, B
BT AR AT DAGE R 1] R A6 W 6 2000H H oo LA L #RERE T,
-TIA R AT LA e B R sofl; KBEAR (2000f1) IV
SR PR AT LALR) e B 4

B2

FAREE RS M TR T ORI R MR, AERRER
FIRE B SRR R AL, AR GLER R A R 5 IR
(VPS)~ BEECHR (RA) A b7 4 8 AR BF 5T H 3 (PMS) 2 4
T Ar A A IR o [FI B A B o M, B O BT S
BEAL MR E— S, BEE—SKE, THR
BEOEAAAKE R TER, K, DRBUSEEDA
R R I R BT T AU, SRR AR T R R
WARRRIEL MG BE TR R L AL
AT 5 15 (MR | D 2 PR TR 7Y 20 AU 1 1 38

B EXARAA] O



2013 4 B #
ANNUAL REPORT

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has not been any change to the capital structure of the
Company since that date.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Company invested its surplus fund through its principal bank
in investment market, which was RMB815,790.

EMPLOYEES

The Group’s remuneration policy is basically determined by the
performance of individual employees. In addition to salaries and
bonuses, employee benefits included medical and pension
contributions and share options schemes.

APPROPRIATION

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements for the year, including the accounting
principles and new and revised accounting standards adopted by
the Company, and discussed matters relating to auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting.

The audit committee confirmed the Company’s actions on
changing the PDS business strategy, reducing staff cost, rental and
other operation cost for more efficiently use of fund and suggested
the company to consider raising funds through bank loans,
issuance of new shares, convertible notes, and issuance of new
debts and other methods etc when needed.

The audit committee considered providing the impairment losses
on relevant assets in 2013 was appropriate, comply with prudent
principle and reflected current market change, suggested the
company to enhance asset management and make more rapid
response to market on business strategy.

10 | VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. William Xia GUQ, is the Chairman, executive Director and
Joint Chief Technology Officer of the Group. Mr. Guo is
responsible for strategic planning and development, overall
management and R&D activities of the Group. Mr. Guo obtained
with a Master degree in science from University of Toronto in
March 1997. Mr. Guo has also completed various approved
courses for the degree of Master of Business Administration in the
Heriot-Watt University. Before establishing the Group in
December 1998, Mr. Guo had worked for two pharmaceutical
companies in Canada, namely Ortho-McNeil Inc. and Novopharm
Limited, both are pharmaceutical companies in Canada as research
scientist and process development manager, respectively. Mr. Guo
has approximately 10 years experience in research, pharmaceutical
development and management in the pharmaceutical industry, Mr.
Guo is a member of the American Association of Pharmaceutical
Scientists and the National Pharmaceutical Sciences Group Inc.

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG, is an executive Director. Dr. Song is
responsible for Clinical Research (R&D) and also the head of the
Human Resources Management Department of the Group. Dr.
Song graduated from China Concord Medical University with a
Doctorate degree in clinical medicine in July 1995. She is also a
Registered Pharmacist in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group in
February 2000, Ms. Song had served as general manager of
Beijing Tiancifu Biopharmaceutical Co. Ltd.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FENG Tao, is nominated as a non-executive Director by C
Tech Fund. Mr. Feng obtained a Master degree in Science from the
Department of Statistics and Applied Probability from the
University of Alberta in June 1992. Mr. Feng has been serving as
the Vice President Officer of The Foundation of Science and
Technology for Development of the State Planning Committee,
State Economic and Trade Commission of the PRC and China
Science Academy since September 1999. He was appointed as
non-executive Director in August 2002.

Mr LI Jin Liang, aged 47, Master of Business Administration
(MBA) of University of East London. Mr Li is a senior member of
British ACCA (The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants), and is Certified Public Accountant (CPA) of China's
Ministry of Finance, Asian registered enterprise risk management
division master (CERM) of Asian risk and crisis management
association, and has twenty years experience of accounting and
finance. He has been Chief Financial Officer in Hopson
Development Holdings Limited, Rachel th dafeng group Co., LTD
and The European food import and export Co., LTD.

Dr. Nathan Xin ZHANG, is a non-executive Director. Dr. Zhang is
the former chief executive officer of Chipscreen Biosciences Ltd.,
a leading Chinese biotech company specialized in innovated
cancer, diabetes, and osteoporosis drug discovery. Dr. Zhang had
worked with KPMG LLP and Credit Suisse First Boston. Dr.
Zhang holds an M.D. from Tianjin Medical University, Ph. D from
University of Pennsylvania, and an MBA from the University of
Chicago, USA.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WU Shou Yuan, is an independent non-executive Director and
is the chairman of the audit committee. Dr Wu is the
executive-director of Wisdom MC which is a subsidiary of China
accounting society, and is the director of ASIA CERAMICS
HOLDINGS PLC which is a listing company in British AIM, etc.
Dr Wu graduated from Ministry of Finance with a doctor’s degree,
from Capital University Of Economic And Business with a
master’s degree, and is a senior member of British ACCA, he is
one of the first batch of students of Ministry of Finance (Certified
Public Accounting Series), he has twenty years experience of
accounting and finance.

Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALOS, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was awarded an MBA from the Columbia University
in May 1985. Mr. Contomichalos had worked for Bristol-Myers
Squibb (BMS). His first position in China was to start up the
consumer over-the-counter business of Bristol-Myers Squibb in
1994, He became Chairman and President of Bristol-Myers
Squibb China from 1997 to 2000. Prior to working in China, Mr.
Contomichalos held various key consumer marketing and business
development positions with Bristol-Myers Squibb in the USA and
Canada and has about18 years of experience in this field. He was
appointed as independent non-executive Director in August 2002,

Mr. ZHANG lJing An, is an independent non-executive Director,
with doctor’s degree of management and graduated from Beijing
Normal University in 1978, and he has extremely rich experience
of management and has deep research in policies and regulations.
Dr Zhang had been chairman of The torch high-tech industry
development center, and chairman of Small and mid-sized
enterprise innovation fund management center, president of
Technology Daily. Dr Zhang is a member of the national
committee of CPPCC, and is the president of CHINA
ASSOCIATION OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY
INDUSTRY PARKS, and is part-time professor or researcher in
Tsinghua University, Peking University,Renmin University of
China, Sun Yat-sen University and Shanghai Jiao Tong
University.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of the Company present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
notes 14 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business

segments is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 33 of the annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 12 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 22
to the financial statements.

RESERVE

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company

during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.
FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 116.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors:
William Xia GUO
Maria Xuemei SONG

Non-executive Directors:

FENG Tao

LI Jing Liang

Nathan Xin ZHANG

Independent Non-executive Directors:
WU Shou Yuan

Paul CONTOMICHALOS
ZHANG Jing An
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S INTEREST IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Company’s Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which are required (a) to notify
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have taken under such provision of the SFO);
or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (¢) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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EHERFBETBA BRI HRBG R0 i

RoF—=8_A=1—H, AARZEBRTETEA
BAAAE R HAEBREE (B8 RS LR ( I#E5F
FIREES]) ) BXVER) ZMfy HRBm eSS, #a
(a) BRI RS 5 F A BB X VIR 7 R s TR AT & A /A F]
REEBBGCHMARAR ( THiR] ) ZH#ERIRE
(LR SRR G 5 R S R B S I SO B R R A
ZHEREGRAE) ; ()RR R BB E 520k, 241
NI TR R RERS SR A S (o) IR AI 3R LAl
5462567 IriR 2 BEAE BRE I T

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the RAAT B B 2 178
Company
(1) The Company (D AT
Number of
shares in which Number of
interested shares in which
(other than interested under Total Approximate
Type of under equity physically settled number percentage of
Name interest Capacity derivatives) equity derivatives of shares interest
FrAMaEL [ESEE R b
IREPEH (AR BRAATE AR T2 HELY
i 1 L EnE| 4 At THERI a2 A E JR A3 S 4
(Note 3)
(FF&E 3)
William Xia GUO Personal Beneficial owner 9,110,377 9,708,000 18,818,377 5.14
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 149,432,583 — 149,432,583 41.11
Corporation (Note 1)
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 15,966,073 - 15,966,073 4.39
Corporation (Note 2)
WE PN BEHEGTA 9,110,377 9708000 18,818,377 5.14
BE AR SYEFIEEREL (D 149,432,583 — 149,432,583 41.11
BE 4| SRR (P 2) 15,966,073 -  15966,073 4.39

Note 1: The controlled corporation, Venturepharm Holdings
Inc., is 47.63 % directly held by Mr. William Xia
GUQ and 49.00 % held by Mr. William Xia GUO
through Winsland Agenis Limited, his wholly and
beneficially owned company incorporated in British
Virgin Islands.

BitaEL: ZHEEHEE Venturepharm Holdings Inc. B #5856
B R 47.63% 0B, LAR @ FEE SE A
Winsland Agents Limited ( T JE L i
BL, HIEEELEHmBEA) FH49.00%K
#Eo
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Note 2: The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets
Limited, is 100 % beneficially owned by
Venturepharm Holdings Inc.

Note 3: Various interests of the Directors and chief
executives pursuant to physically settled equity
derivatives are through share options granted under
the Pre-IPO share option scheme.Details of which
are set forth as follows:
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fifat2: ZFH 7 M Bright Excel Assets Limited- 2 A5 FE ]
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. Bl at HEH o

HPRTEFTHA AR YRR TE TR
HfaE3: IR F2Z IR 295 BRI B I 4B B B
SRR E B FE ] Z SRR I o FFIEHESTAT -

Number of shares in
which interested under physically

settled equity derivatives as at

Name 20 June 2003 and 31 December 2011 Date of grant Exercise price

RoERE=FRASTHE

CEAE =10

R EWR AR AN ETE
4 ARG R E i B35 T
William Xia GUO 7,200,000 20-Jun-03 HK$0.32
William Xia GUO 360,000 2-Mar-05 HEK$0.52
William Xia GUO 324,000 10- Aug-06 HK$0.36
William Xia GUO 966,000 10-May-07 HK$0.625
William Xia GUO 858,000 7-Apr-09 HK$0.435
1§~ 7,200,000 TEREFSFNATTA 0.3237C
ME 360,000 CEFRFEZACH 0.52¥7C
ME 324,000 CEFEANENATH 0.36387C
LIy 966,000 ZEFLERATH 0.6251:7C
Lig ] 858,000 ZEZNENHLEH 0.4357 7T

Options granted to Mr. William Xia GUO contain a vesting schedule,
pursuant to which may exercise up to 30 % of the underlying shares
after 31 December 2003, up to another 30 % of the underlying shares
after 31 December 2004 and the balance after 31 December 2005. The
relevant options will expire after ten years from the date of grant. Mr.
William Xia GUO has undertaken to the Stock Exchange that he will
not exercise their options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options
Scheme within the first 12 months from the Listing Date
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(2) A subsidiary of the Company — Beijing Dezhong-Venture
Pharmaceutical Technology Development Company
Limited

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors and chief executive had any interests or short positions
in any securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
are required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provision of the SFO); or (b) pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (c¢) pursuant to the rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as it is known to any Directors, chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2013, the interests and short
positions of persons in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed pursuant to Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required, pursuant
to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein were as follows:
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Approximate
percentage of
Name Capacity Number of shares Interest
P £ Beygn MR BAE S
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 1) Beneficial owner 149, 432, 583 41.10
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 15, 966, 073 4.38
Bright Excel Assets Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 15, 966, 073 4.38
William Xia GUO Beneficial owner and interest 184, 217, 033 50.57
(Notes 1, 2 and 3) of controlled corporations
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Fff & 1) EaA A 149, 432, 583 41.10
Venturepharm Holdings Tnc. (fff FF 2) T s ]k R 25 15, 966, 073 438
Bright Excel Assets Limited (Ff &% 2) HREAA 15, 966, 073 438
wWOE O RE 1L 2K3) Hu A N K G % B 184, 217, 033 50.57
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company AR TR RAMBD 2 58

Note 1: Venturepharm Holdings Inc. is 47.63% directly held
by Mr. William Xia GUO and 49% held by Mr.
William Xia GUO through Winsland Agent Limited,
his  wholly and beneficially owned company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

Note 2:  The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited, is
100 % beneficially owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc.

Note 3: Apart from shares held through Venturepharm Holdings
Inc., the interest of 18,818,377 shares comprising of
7,200,000 and 2,508,000 shares underlying the options
granted to him under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and Share Option Scheme respectively are
beneficially owned by Mr. William Xia GUO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, there was no
other persons who was recorded in the register of the Company
as having interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were required, pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.
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Kiat3: BRiEifVenturepharm Holdings Inc. #5792 5,
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No other contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SHARE Option Scheme
1. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

1.Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the
shareholder on 31 March 2003, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (the ‘“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme’)
in order to recognize and reward the contribution of
certain Directors, senior management and advisers, the
details of which are set out in the paragraph head “Share
Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus. As
at 20 June 2003, options comprising a total of
11,520,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2013 the options outstanding are 9, 720,000
and no options granted pursuant to the Pre-[PO Share
Option Scheme had been exercised, cancelled or lapsed.
Particulars of the outstanding options that had been
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Schemes at 31
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December 2013 are as follows:

Period during Number of

which the options Exercise underlying shares

remain exercisable price per under the option as at

Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2012
PR 3 ) E AR —E =+ HA=1—H

AN R PATEIFR AT Hi A B AHBR B A i E
William Xia GUO (Notes 1 & 2) 10 years HK$0. 32 7,200,000
2 other participants (Notes 1 & 2) 10 years HK$0. 32 2,520,000
9,720,000

FE (1A T4 0. 3270 7,200,000
2 A S R (BRE1R2) +4E 0. 32370 2,520,000
9,720,000

Note 1: Options granted to each of them contain a vesting
schedule, pursuant to which may exercise up to 30%
of the underlying shares after 31 December 2003,
(subject to Note 2), up to another 30 % of the
underlying shares after 31 December 2004 and the
balance after 31 December 2006.

Bfatl. i R TR, UL,
A T EE=AFEA T H = EBTRET 2
BR300 SEIAE (FERHE22 M),
FRPYEA- ] = — HET A Z TR
FBR3000. 2 BT, R CFENESH =+
— HEETTERR T Z B R A
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Note 2: Fach of the grantees has undertaken to the Stock

Exchange that they will not exercise their options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme
within the first 12 months from the Listing Date.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted
a new share option scheme.

As at 2 March 2005, options comprising a total of
4,042,000 underlying shares were granted. As at
31December 2013, the options outstanding are 850, 400
and 3, 191, 600 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed.

HEEGHRE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Hifit2: HARBA LB ATAR, 7HLiHE 12

AR, WFHRAGTT R R KA IR T
JRRE T L SRR -

e

MBALRRFA —FZ=FHA T =HZ&EH
B, AN RIRA—IEHRE R .

RoZZRHEZHH, c#H# A3, 042,000
AR By 2 A . A — S H =
H, 850, 40043 B M RAT6E, A3, 191, 600
P N 2 P A B 2 HH 2 B TR R B B R
A=A = —H, ARIREERRES

Particulars of the outstanding options which have been B AT RS I T
granted under this Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2013 are as follows:
Period during Number of
which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at
Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2013
FRIHE A 2L H R “F=FH=1—H
R AR A TFATEIBIRR HRATEM SEEIRHE Y e 2 MR R 1 B B
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0. 52 360,000
Other Directors 10 years HK$0. 52 302,400
Other participants 10 years HK$0. 52 188,000
850,400
HE +4F 0. 527t 360,000
HAiE T4 0. 52T 302,400
b2 HF +4F 0. 5270 188,000
850,400
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted
a new share option scheme.

As at 14 December 2005, options comprising a total of
1,098,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2013, the options outstanding are 72, 000
and 1, 026, 000 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed.
Particulars of the outstanding options which have been
granted under this Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2013 are as follows:
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v HiE

WEBAAFABRFAR - EZR=FHA -+ =HZEm
R, FATRMN IR E .

R-FTHETZA+TINH, SREYEEH]
1,098, 000/ AHRA 0 < B . A =B — =+
—HZE+—H, H72, 0004 BEHEMARATE, KB
1, 026, 00047 AR 3 % A A v 2842 1 2 S PR HE 0 e
R, R -=F+_HA=1—-H, AHIR
PRI AR B 2 AR AT AR R T

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted

a new share option scheme.

As at 10 August 2006, options comprising a total of
4,118,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2013, the options outstanding are 1,254,600
and 2,863,400 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed.
Particulars of the outstanding options which have been
granted under this Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2013 are as follows:

Period during Number of

which the options Exercise underlying shares

remain exercisable price per under the option as at

Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2013
FRIBHER R B iR ZE =TT A=1H

RN AT TRBAT AL I K R IR
4 participants 10 years HK$0. 45 72,000
72,000

1B HE +4E 0. 454570 72,000
72,000

SHARE OPTION SCHEME R

REALAFRAR —FF=FL] -+ =HZ &M@
TRekSE, AR EIRGA— U R BT .

AZEENENATH, CEHEEAH4, 118,000
AR A 2 B, A — = A=t —
H, 1,254,600 frid et AT, &FH 2,863,400
A S S R e T 452 L) e R A R S B
AR+ H=+—H, FHRMREREERE
B M ARATE R RS R
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6. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the sharcholders
of the Company on 25 March 2009, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme.

As at 7 April 2009, options comprising a total of
11,966,800 underlying shares were granted. As at
31December 2013 the options outstanding are
6,308,800 and 5,658,000 options granted pursuant to
this Share Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed.
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6. it

REA AR RS _FFNEZA A HZ B
RERR, AN EIR—THH A T .

BoEZRAFNALH, CfRHE A1, 966, 800
AR R A . AT —=%+—HA=1—H,

F 6,308,800 EMHENIAATIE, RIREEHRREST B
HZ B HES 5, 658, 000/ fi s Ey .
FoZAETCAZ0, BHREER T Y
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Period during Number of
which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at
Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2012
SRR A2t H 7 SEF A=
S PN ¥ F AT AT (R AR B 2 B Rt 3 H
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0. 36 324,000.00
Other directors 10 years HK$0. 36 504,000.00
Other participants 10 years HK$0. 36 426,600.00
1,254,600.00
WE +4E 0. 36## T 324,000.00
Hit#EH -4 0. 3637t 504,000.00
HAhZHak T4F 0. 3630 426,600.00
1,254,600.00
5. SHARE OPTION SCHEME SR

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted
a new share option scheme.

As at 10 May 2007, options comprising a total of
7,568,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2013, the options outstanding are 2,643,300
and 4,924,700 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed.

WRBALAFBRAR - FF=01] - t=HZ&Mm
REBR, AAFRG—IFHRRAES E.

RoEZREETH+TH, S2HERE3LT, 568, 000
RAHRAR (2 B, % —=%t+—_H=1—H,

2, 643, 3003 HEBAE M RATRE, B4, 924, TR
B RAEST EI 2 TR SR e, R
L=+ "H=1+—H, OHREMRE =R

Particulars of the outstanding options which have been Wz AT RS T .
granted under this Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2013 are as follows:
Period during Number of
which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at
Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2013
BRI H % SHE = H=1—H
HRFZNEE A TATEBIR FRATHEE T RS B~ AHRA B B
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0. 625 966,000.00
Other Directors 10 years HK$0. 625 732,000.00
Other participants 10 years HK$0. 625 945,300.00
2,463,300.00
e +4F 0. 625370 966,000.00
HihH +4E 0. 625%# 7T 732,000.00
Hib 25 +4E 0. 62547t 945,300.00
2,463,300.00
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Particulars of the outstanding options which have been ZAAT IR IR
granted under this Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2013 are as follows:
Period during Number of
which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at
Name of grantees after the date of grant share 7.4.2009 and 31.12.2013
R_FRNEMALHR
FRIBCRERA I s H A% —F—=%t+-A=t+—H
SN (RS A TATREHIFR BRATEE SR B AR R B B
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0. 435 858,000.00
Other directors 10 years HK$0. 435 1,135,200.00
Other participants 10 years HK$0. 435 4,315,600.00
6,308,800.00
HE T4F 0. 4353 7T 858,000.00
HAib#ES +4F 0. 435%J0 1,135,200.00
Hib2 8% T4F 0. 43500 4,315,600.00
6,308,800.00
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS A 2

Details of the discloseable connected transactions during the year
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance conceming the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was entere into or subsisted during the
year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors or the
management shareholders of the Company and their respective
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest
in a business that competes or may compete with the business of
the Group.

N TG TR TR < B 5 S RO AR A B B AR I 29

HHAE

P N A0 A TR AR R W) BT AT IR B A El A
IRERK IR T ERAAT.

LS

REZF—=ZF+ZA=+—H, ARFAZEFREEER
REREFAZEEN L CGERRAZER EHRRD e
AT {7 SR A G2 9] S 5 4 BB PT RE I e T 10 S 5 b AT
.
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BOARD PRACTICE AND PROCEDURES

Since the listing of the Company, the Company has complied
with Board Practices and Procedures as set out in Rules5.46 to
5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DELAY IN RESULT ANNOUNCEMENT

Because auditing of the impairments of receivables and work-in-progress,
convertible notes and payables without being finished on time,
the publication of the Result Announcement of the company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2013 was delayed.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation for independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Independent
Non-executive Directors have confirmed that they are independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 65.7% of the Group’s sales. The largest customer
accounted for approximately 17.5% of the sales of the Group.

Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers were less than 10% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital had any interest in the five
largest customers of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

AUDITORS

UHY VOCATION HK CPA LIMITED was appointed as the
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chairman
William Xia GUO

Beijing, the PRC, 29 July 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (4} MEEEIRER
The Company applied the principles and fully complied AR R IE A SEAR b TR R B 5 5 B [ H Ao 4 i
with the Code Provision as set out in Appendix 15 of the SPE AR T RSO ( [REERERTR] D . &
GEM Listing Rules ("CG Code") save with certain T RABORREE, T W AT R .
deviations in respect of the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer.
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS 2  EFEZEHEXH
A4 TR AIZER B BRI, BRE L
The Company has adopted the Company Code for TAT NS RATEFZ HHAT R, ERELR
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers MoEEZRENA S TAAEREREEHER BT
incompliance with the provisions that are set out in the B, &remlE e B iE, EFHHEE
GEM Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for R E —F-=F+ =+ —HIFEELF,
Directors' dealings of securities since 29 June 2005. — By 4w sy R BT e Al
Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors
and the Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Company Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 3 H¥Y
The overall governance structure of the Company is set ENASSIE o AR er e T
out below:
The Board
HE
Chairman appointed by the board
HEEEREER
2 Executive Directors
ey €
3 Non-Executive Directors
NLAEHT#E
3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
3R
Executive Directors Audit Committdd
BITHE wHERE
. ) 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
William Xia GUO ROk IR s
31‘3 . Wu Shou Yuan(Chairman)
Mrir!a Xuemei SONG sy (e
K& Paul CONTOMICHALOS
Zhang Jing An
i
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Note:

(a) The Non-Executive Directors of the Company during
the year and up to the date of this report are:

FENG Tao

WU Xin (resigned on 24 May 2012)
L1Jin Liang (appointed on 24 May 2012)
Nathan Xin ZHANG

The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

WU Shou Yuan
Paul CONTOMICHALOS
ZHANG Jing An

The Board of Directors ("Board") of the Company is collectively
responsible for the oversight of the management of the business
and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing
shareholders value.

The Board of the Company comprises a total of eight Directors,
with two Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors. One-third of the
Board is Independent Non-cxecutive Directors and one of them
has appropriate professional qualifications. Reviews are made
regularly of the Board composition to ensure that it has a balance
of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. All Independent
Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in GEM Rule 5.09 of the Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval
and monitoring of the Group's overall strategies and policies;
approval of annual budgets and business plans; evaluating the
performance of the Group; and oversight of management. One of
the important roles of the Chairman is to provide leadership to the
Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Group. All Directors have been consulted about any matters
proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With the support of
Executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receives adequate and reliable

information in a timely manner.
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Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in advance to
give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Four regular Board
meetings at approximately quarterly intervals have been
scheduled for 2013. The Directors can attend meetings in persons
or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the Company's Articles of Association. Board
papers are circulated not less than seven days before the Board
meetings to enable the Directors to make informed decisions on
matters to be raised at the Board meetings. The Company
Secretary and the Qualified Accountant shall attend all regular
Board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance, accounting and financial matters when necessary.
Directors shall have full access to information of the Group and
are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman in establishing the meeting agenda, and each
Director may request inclusion of items in the agenda. Minutes of
the board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
open for inspection by Directors.

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2013, the
Board met and held four meetings. The attendance
records of the aforementioned four Board meetings are

set out below:
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AATEREFEEPERGTRFLRIIGME, LS
WHFAREHE. R oF—=5F, OREZEMTHE
TR EH RGO MBALAFZAFABRTERMEA
, BHUBRSHERE HEATT M E G EREHE
PREFGERE TR CRAMHER, CIRERESREA
PERGEHER N ZERFRATRE. AFELGE
WEEHZHIL R A EMEF G GR, WRHERRAR
Bins HERS. GEtRUHREIIRMER. FREE
BUASERUR A ER, 16 RET & J0md i 5 R IR 2 e
Rhe AR B L PR A R R, T R LR
THEEAER, BFGEHIKOATMEFE, W
HEHERN.

gE—f-=gt-H=t—Hik+=EH, EFE
WETIU . RVIKESE GO HE sk
B

Attendance of individual directors at
board meetings during the year
SENEREE  EH Y gHERE

Attendance no. Attendance rate

Executive Director #ITEE

William Xia GUO SiE 4/4 100%
Maria Xuemei SONG KEHE 4/4 100%
Non-executive Directors JefTESE

FENG Tao iR 4/4 100%
LI Jin Liang (appointed on 24 May 2012) Z4r3 (A 2012 4E 5 A 24 HEE) 4/4 100%
Nathan Xin ZHANG Rk 3/4 75%
Independent Non-executive Directors B refTESR

WU Shou Yuan REU 4/4 100%
Paul CONTOMICHALOS Paul CONTOMICHALOS 4/4 100%
ZHANG Jing An X5 4/4 100%
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership
and effective running of the Board, and ensures that all
keys and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board
in a timely and constructive manner.

However, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
has not yet been appointed. Currently, the day-to-day
management of the Company's business is handled by
the executive directors and senior management, who
take the responsibility to run the Group's business and
to implement the Group's strategy so as to achieve the
overall commercial objectives of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises the
Chaimman of the Board Mr. William Xia GUO, a Non-executive
Director Mr. FENG Tao and an Independent Non-executive
Director Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALOS. Mr. William Xia
GUO is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management and reviewing the
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association,
nomination of Directors is determined by the Board with
approvals by the shareholders in the general meeting.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The coming annual general meeting should approve the
appointment of UHY Vocation HK CPA Limited as the
auditors of the Group and that the Board is and be
hereby authorized to fix auditors’ remuneration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
the Company's annual reports and accounts, half-yearly
reports and quarterly reports and internal control system
of the Group and provide advice and comments to the Board.
The audit committee has three members comprising the
three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. WU
Shou Yuan, Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALOS and Mr.
ZHANG Jing An . Mr. WU Shou Yuan is the chairman
of the audit committee.
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(8)  AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED) ® EEZReE@E
During the twelve months ended 31 December 2013, the BE_F =Ft+-A=t-Hib+=H, FEZx
audit committee held three meetings and reviewed the BEGBIT=IKEE, BOBRMAER L TEERS.
Group's annual report, quarterly and interim financial ZEREPH LS. PR=EEER e
results. The attendance records of the aforementioned e s
three audit committee meetings are set out below:
Attendance of individual directors at
board meetings during the year
FANNEFRZLEFS2UNFEE
Attendance no. Attendance rate
R S
Members BE
WU Shou Yuan REFIT 4/4 100%
Paul CONTOMICHALOS Paul CONTOMICHALOS 4/4 100%
ZHANG Jing An B 4/4 100%
9 DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THEIR  (9) EHETHRESERMBEE BT
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge that they take full responsibility WHTHE, WA SR A TRE. |
in the preparation of the financial statements.
(10)  INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT 10) PFHEBEELRBRERE

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has a
sound and effective internal control system. The Group is
committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities
and has implemented a practical and effective control
system which includes a defined management structure
with limits of authority, a sound cash management system
and periodic review of the Group’s operation and
performance by the Audit Committee and the Board. The
internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board to ensure it is effective. The Board is satisfied
that, based on information furnished to it and on its own
observations, the present internal controls of the Group are
satisfactory. The Board has conducted review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control and is of the
view that the system of internal control adopted for the year
ended 31 December 2013 is sound and effective. The
Group does not have an internal audit function and the
Board is of the view that there is currently no need for the
Group to have this function.
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3/E., Malaysia Building, 50 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

AL B
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

B R AT
€
(i B = A S e oz 2 A PR A R])

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Venturepharm Laboratories Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 33
to 115 which comprise the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine are necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial staternents based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the content of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement. However,
because of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of
opinion paragraph, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for audit opinion.
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Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion: Fundamental Uncertainty
relating to the Going Concern Basis

As explained in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements
which indicates that the Group incurred consolidated loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB31,028,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013 and had
consolidated net current liabilities of approximately
RMB131,906,000, including the Convertible Note of
approximately RMB95,479,000. In addition, the Group failed to
meet interest payment of RMBS5,100,000 on the Convertible
Note, which have been overdue as at 31 December 2013. The
Convertible Notes holders have the right to demand for
repayment of the Note at 110 percent of the principal amount if
interest payment is in default. The Group is currently undertaking
a number of measures to improve its financial and current
liquidity position. On 26 May 2014, the Company entered into a
Term Sheet with certain holders of the Convertible Notes who
hold the majority of the voting rights attached to the Convertible
Notes. Pursuant to the terms of the Term Sheet, all parties
conditionally have agreed to settle all claims and mutually
release each other from any further liabilities or obligations
under the Convertible Notes.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent upon the
satisfaction of all conditions in the Term Sheet with Noteholders,
successful outcome of negotiation with prospective investors to
secure continual financial support and the attainment of
profitable and positive cash flow operations of the Group to meet
its future working capital and financial requirements. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments
that may be necessary should the implementation of such
measures be taken place.

‘We consider that appropriate disclosures have been made in the
consolidated financial statements concerning this situation,
however the uncertainty surrounding the outcome of these
measures raises significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

2013 F W&
ANNUAL REPORT

AR B R RS ERY TEANHER

WA R, B2 % =4+ —H=+Hit
R EEM B ARG A SRR A R31,0080007T,
T ESERR H S5 Ar A s e s A R 13190600000,
AT ] M e A\ 95479, 000TT. AL, BHEEMIARESAS
AT B A B AL RS, 10000070, EEIGEA],
RS N AT AT ISR Fria R A B LA 4
B GBS SR BRI 11000 IEE AT R . B4R
P E SR S TR LA A B R Bl TR et — %
—PERA A7 H, BATBR AT IR L S T+
FEFEEREE. AEEERRSRIRY:, ShARHRRE
AR TR TSI TR ETE R R .

R AT AR O H B R, SR T PR AT
REA SRR A ABRT Z i E P R TR T T
G RAIIMEC R, M AR eGSR LIRS
BAENE S TR TR AR a Bl AR A T T
Z AR R R B AR

B, ARa i RERR DA DU R DR, TR
it FH TR E A B BB R A A TR 7 T A B A AR BA]
#, DERUEEETRE R,

EemugERARAA]3



2013 4 W&

ANNUAL REPORT

Disclaimer of opinion

Because of the significance of the fundamental uncertainty
relating to the going concern basis, we do not express an opinion
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

Year ended 31 December
BE+_HA=1+—HILFE

2013 2012
on the consolidated financial statements as to whether they give B T b4 vl R EEER —F— =2+ _"_H=+ i e Yo
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the = —HZ MBUR, REEFE#HEZH FEFZ HEHEH S Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Company as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s result and MR ERER. M, SEmmA T RHE Pff=E ANEBETIT MNE¥TIT
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong  EHIMAFIE L w0 B94% 5510 8 Z 5l .

Kong Financial Reporting Standards. In all other respects, in our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been Revenue 250y A 5 14.931 78.688
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements Cost of sales e 1N (9,910) (16 ,236)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. :
Gross profit FEF 5,021 12,452
i N Other income HAbr A 6 2,633 3,711
UHY VOCATION HK CPA LIMITED KB EERFEEIARAR Administrative expenses THEEH 8 (20,900) (17.448)
Certified Public Accountants BEGEHE Tmpairment loss on work-in-progress i SR E RS 16 (10,202) (6,653)
_ _ ; _ (Loss)/gain on revaluation of convertible notes 7] #5245 B4k (5 18/ 247 25 (3,943) 16,283
Dav%d Tze Kin Ng, RFPER ﬁﬁﬁm Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair EEE AT
Alldlf.:O.l' . PR AR P553 value through profit or loss, net 20 184 37
Practising Certificate Number P553 Finance (costs)/income — net S (2 FH ) A1 7 (3,759) (5,151)
Hong Kong, 29 July 2014 i, —F—NF-tEA =+LH (LossViprofit before income tax KRR (AR /A (30,966) 3231
Income tax Frigte 10 (53) (113)
Total comprehensive income for the year A B () A (31,019) 3,118
Attributable to: J o5 -
Owners of the Company AANTHEA N (31,028) 3,207
Non-controlling interests Ar ehE A 9 (89)
(31,019) 3,118
Basic and diluted (loss) /earnings per share FE7s Rl A I (R B 11 (8.50)1lli (cents) 0.88li(cents)

The notes on pages 38 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

WiPhs 38 22 11 L Bk A B ERaR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

As at 31 December As at 31 December
#H—HA=1+—H W—HA=4—H
2013 2012 2013 2012
R R R F-T4R
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 Note RMB’000 RMB’000
fisr AR¥TRT AE¥®TT e ARWTRE AR®TT
ASSETS B ASSETS B
Non-current assets IF ) Non-current assets e E) g
Property, plant and equipment 2. BRE IR 12 7,281 9,616 Investments in subsidiaries A VAP < 14 12,813 12,813
New drugs technology HEER AT 13 - -
Deferred tax assets WEERTVE P 15 - - Current assets g RE
7,281 9,616 Prepayments and other receivables FEAHEE A A R 19 8,698 4,040
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss e B E RO SRl 20 816 1,815
Current assets T Cash and cash equivalents Blé MBREFED 21 690 99
Work-in-progress TEEE 16 4,747 17,611 10,204 5,954
Trade and note receivables RSB RO ST B 18 1,317 3,535 Total assets o) g 23,017 18,767
Prepayments and other receivables TEA e R oAt R 19 1,465 6,123
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss FA B EEEIE SRR T £aiGrE 20 816 1,815 EQUITY &R
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEH 21 2,596 2,771 Ordinary shares JieAs 22 38,681 38,536
Total assets A 18,222 41,471 Reserves et 23 (144,525) (135,487)
EQUITY B Capital deficiency EahaET (105,844) (96,951)
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company A/ FIHAEA AMEAEHERS
Ordinary shares s 22 38,681 38,536 LIABILITIES 4=l
Reserves FEE 23 (163,472) (132,880) Non-current liabilities ElS =t
Non-controlling interests AehiRER 166 157 Convertible notes Bk 25 - 91,875
Capital deficiency B AR (124,625) (94,187)
Current liabilities MEE
LIABILITIES =y Other payables and accruals HAth BRI FR REA 2 24 13,013 5,400
Non-current liabilitics |ty Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAS—F-2A T 24 20,369 18,443
Convertible bonds o] s 25 - 91,875 Convertible notes al R ES 25 95,479 -
128,861 23,843
Current liabilities W Total liabilities AMEEFEr 128,861 115,718
Other payables and accruals S A R A~ 24 22,579 17,264 Total equity and liabilitics e A=l xas 23,017 18,767
Convertible bonds W 25 95,479 - Net current liabilities FesE ERE (118,657) (17,889)
Receipts in advance Feriesk 21,744 23,475 Total assets less current liabilities S EREE A (105,844) (5,076)
Bank borrowing FRFTEE 26 3,000 3,000
Income tax liabilities FEATFIE 45 44
142,847 43,783 Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 July 2014
Total liabilities afftaEr 142,847 135,658 FEHREOR FNU-EH SRS R, W T ERARREE.
Total equity and liabilities RS M A fH AT 18,222 41,471
Net current liabilities B R (131,906) (11,928) Mr. William Xia GUO Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG
Total assets less current liabilities HEERnE AT (124,625) (2,312) FE ek REMGHL
Director Director
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 July 2014 A #ay

EHQOER T NE-EA ST HMERRETEE, I TIEEAREE,;

Mr. William Xia GUO

The notes on pages 38 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG S 38 7 1 15 B S E A B s S A AEL A 4«

R AL REMHEA
Director Director
B HF

The notes on pages 38 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BE _F——4+_A=+—HILFERE R R AT A= HIMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013 For the year ended 31 December 2013
Attributable to owners of the Company Year ended 31 December
FAARE A BET_A=1t—"HILFE
Share- Statutory Retained 2013 2012
based enterprise earnings/ Non- g AR TR
Share payment Special Capital Statutory  expansion  (accumulated controlling Total Note RMB’000 RMB’000
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve fund Ioss) Total interests equity Mﬂ‘%‘_{ MNEWT 5 ANE i@—‘r— IC
WA A EERE  HERH e
Bk ZMABE  BUEA  WRBE  BEAR BRES  (RiER B EEHER ENA Cash flows from operating activities RBEHHERE
RMP'OI0  RMB'OOD  RMB'OOD  RMB'ON0  RMB'OD  RMBO0  RMB'OM  RMB'ON)  RMB'OD  RMB'ON Cash used in operations AETRE)EH 2 TS 27 (1,570) (2,790)
AR%TE  AREFZ ARETx AR%Tx AR¥Tx AR®Tx AR®TZ  ARMTL  AR¥TZ  AR¥TL Interest expenses F a7 (157 (3,677)
N Income tax paid FrASHISH (52) (150)
Blancessat ] January 2012 —H—H 3,536 390 £0%9 1818 3805 69% (1575%)  (964%6) (316) (96.752)
Net cash used in operating activities TR ER (1,779) (6,617)
Carnprehensive incorne ATl ﬁﬁ:;‘%ﬁﬂ
Proft r theyear BERRE - - - - - - 3207 3200 (89) 3118
Totelcomprebensve incomre AHRFA - - - - - - 3,207 3207 (89) 3,118 Cash flows from investing activities BEEHHERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment FEEMISE. R Rt 12 )] (809)
Totdcontbuton byand dibuton BT Dividends income JRFIUL A 33 42
ol oy Proceeds from disposal of property, HYEEIZE. B At - 59
recogpized ey drecy 5 plant and equipment ZIA
mﬁmmm EZ:%:;*” - %5 - - 1-3 - (1-3 ) 35 : ¥ Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HYEHE A RS H A 983 252
tostatuiory reserve: 7| JE - - - - - - - - . . 2 =,
ottt BTSSR ) _ ) ) ) ) ) ) - o at fair vah_le through profit or loss PR EREEZ WA
Totd bansactionswith owners s - 365 - - 18 - (1.498) (1,115) 362 (553) Interest received HACEBLF 2 8 22
Net cash used in investing activities BT 2 B 1,023 (434)
Balance asat 3| December 2012 S iy wt - o | 3 L
and 1 fmy2013 BR-F-=E-A-H 856 428 6039 1318 3801 6986 (155829) (34340 157 (54187) Cash flows from financing activities WRED SIS
Proceeds from short-term loan R E S EE 3,000 3,000
i il Repayment of short-term loan BAMEEAETE (3,000) -
Losfotheyer AR - . - - . - (31,028) (3L028) 9 (31,019) Proceeds from issuance of new shares TR ERSELE 581 -
Tt comprehensieincome AFERAH - . - - - - (L8 (BL8) 9 (31.019)
Net cash generated from financing activities LR BT 581 3,000
Totelcontrbuton byand disrbution  BFEE
b@ofﬂwﬁmpaﬂ}' Net decrease in cash and Bl MBS EYEwE (175) (4,051)
recogrized in ey decty cash equivalents
ol dureopon it 1 : - 0 - - - i : e Cash and cash equivalents at the e RN e Lb ) i 21 2,771 6,822
Tobwscinswihomes BB 145 . . 16 ; . . 581 ) 51 beginning of the year
Bucesad Doenber 3. R-F—=4FmF=1—H 3868 42485 6039 2254 3421 6986 (186857) (124791 166 (124625) Cash and cash equivalents at the end B RS RRERE 21 2,596 27

of the year

The notes on pages 38 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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The notes on pages 38 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

GENERAL INFORMATION

Venturepharm Laboratories Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 May
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Scotia Centre,
4th Floor, PO Box 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman,
Cayman Islands, and its principal place of business is
Haitong Commercial Center,No.11,North West 3rd Ring
Road, Haidian District, Beijing, ,China, 100089.The
Company has its shares listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 10 July 2003.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 July
2014.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules™).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention as modified
by financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
convertible notes that are stated at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

Going concern

The Group incurred loss attributable to owners of
approximately RMB31,028,000 for the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012: profits of approximately
RMB3,207,000) and as of that date, the Group had net
current liabilities of approximately RMB131,906,000
(2012:RMB11,928,000) and capital deficiency of approximately
RMB124,625,000 (2012: RMB94,187,000).
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2.1.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Going concern (Continued)

In addition, the Group failed to meet interest payment of
RMBS5,100,000 on the Convertible Notes, which have been
overdue as at 31 December 2013. The Convertible Notes
holders have the right to demand for repayment of the
Notes at 110 percent of the principal amount if interest
payment is in default. The Group is currently undertaking a
number of measures to improve its financial and current
liquidity position.

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its available sources of
finance in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern.

On 26 May 2014, the Company entered into a term sheet
(“Term Sheet”) with certain holders of the Convertible
Notes who hold the majority of the voting rights attached to
the Convertible Notes (the “Majority Noteholders™).
Pursuant to the terms of the Term Sheet, all parties have
agreed to settle all claims and mutually release each other
from any further liabilities or obligations under the
Convertible Notes. More details will be negotiated with
Majority Noteholders.

Subsequently, the Company has undergone commercial
negotiations to rectify the authority of the Majority
Noteholders to settle the Convertible Notes with the
Company for itself and on behalf of all Noteholders. A
supplementary Settlement and Mutual Release Agreement
(“Supplementary ~ Agreement”) is currently being
negotiated and we expect to sign the Supplementary
Agreement shortly. Subject to satisfactory outcome of the
Settlement, it is expected that the Company’s debt level will
be reduced.

Meanwhile, considering the working capital and long term
funding demand for future development, the Group will
consider raising funds through bank loans and issuance of
new shares, etc.
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(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impact of new and amended standards
New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following standards have been adopted by the Group
for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after
1 January 2013, are currently relevant and have no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRSs Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 cycle

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation
of items of other

comprehensive income

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 Consolidated financial statements,

and HKFRS 12 Joint arrangements and Disclosure
(Amendments) of interests in other entities:
Transition guidance
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other
entities
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee benefits
HEKAS 27 (2011) Separate financial statements
HEKAS 28 (2011) Investments in associates and

joint ventures

HKAS 1 (Amendments) require entities to present
separately the items of other comprehensive income that
would be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain
conditions are met from those that would never be
reclassified to profit or loss.

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27
“Consolidated and separate financial statements” relating to
the preparation of consolidated financial statements and
HK-SIC 12"Consolidation — Special purpose entities”. It
introduces a single control model to determine whether an
investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether
the entity has power over the investee, exposure or rights to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
the ability to use its power to affect the amount of those
returns. The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation(Continued)
2.1.2  Impact of new and amended standards
(b)  New and amended standards not yet adopted by the Group.

A number of new standards and amendments to standards
and interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2014, and have not been applied
in preparing these consolidated financial statements.

Improvement to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle®

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12and  Investment entities'

Improvement to HKFRSs

HKAS 27 (2011)
(Amendments)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9
(Amendments) and transition disclosures®
HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions *
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting financial assets and
financial Liabilities'
HKAS 36 (Amendments) Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets '
HKAS 39 (Amendments) Novation of derivatives and

continuation of hedge accounting '

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014.

» Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014.

s Available for application-the mandatory effective date
will be determined when the outstanding phase of HKFRS
9 are Finalized.

Management does not anticipate that the application of the

new standards and amendments will result in a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made
up to 31 December 2013.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (*“its subsidiaries”). Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. The existence and effect of potential
voting right that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. The Group also assess existence of control
when it does not have more than 50% of voting right but is
able to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue
of de-facto control.

De-facto control may arise from circumstances where it
does not have more than 50% of the voting power but is
able to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue
of de-facto control.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate,

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation. Profits
and losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are
recognised in assets are also climinated. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with those used by other members of the Group.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEGHBURME (#) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEEEEE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED) POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 2.2 REEEHE ) 2.3 Foreign currency translation 2.3 Ik

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly

in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at
the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
(including any components of other comprehensive
income attributable to them), and (iii) recognises the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest, with any
resulting difference being recognise as a gain or loss in
profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets of the
subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and
the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e.
reclassified to statement of comprehensive income or
transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

44 | VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

A B A R B < A B, (IR
ALK LZEMBAFRRHRE, BRI
FRo AHEMR 2 MR B R AR (B T LAsE
AR AT B B A ] 2 AR RE R > B8] . JERReiE
it BB N B E 2 - HERE 2 [
MIZERE, SEERMERE (CHADGER) WERRIERRER A
ATFHEAN.

A SRR Sk — T A w2 e, HGR&x
IR BRI ERERZ N WA EiE (B
TEATMRTE) RAS R AR 0 BUHEE
HUFH R A FHEMT AR RS (B G HeAt
IR 2 AEATARLBGERGY) Z BRTAEL, % (iif) e AT
B A RAE M R B A 2 2 T A0, P
BEAE - R R R PR AR A e O T o
e bt I AR Ve EE IR A R E A TAEF R, T
B R w iz s i B R H A2 e I RERRIE R et
Hedi, SUSGRTRA HoAh 2 E i RE Il Rt AR 2 3K
B, MEIAREC R BB EA R (B
B BE B SR 2 B e B B R B
HREREER) o RAIEHIREE BRI AR
PRE AR 2 AT R B G R 305k
Ml THL: el Mt ) AR RIS ER)E
HERBZ A THH, B (W) RIS HERR R e
AT S A A

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (“foreign currencies’)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Renminbi “RMB”’) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control
over ajointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to statement of comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BESHBORNE(®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BB ENE )
POLICIES (CONTINUED) POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 Revenue recognition 24 N 24 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.4 WATERE (4
i Revenues from the transfer of new drug developed 1 [T T E T DR B B PRER T AE A A V' Royalty income on drugs produced by third parties v R o R 5 P A A T S B R A o PR L T
and formulation data are recognised upon transfer of T AR R R R, — RS using the Group’s technical know-how is A 2 AR P REW N FAHE ST WG RE R R A
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally W B S T 2 ] o recognised when the right to receive is established.
coincides with the time when the compound and
data are delivered to customers. Vi Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by Vi SR EE R BN TR R b e LA A
reference to the principal outstanding and at the Az B H B R R
i Revenues from contracted research and development, i NERTADRE. ARG, S A R effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
pharmaceutical application, registration and testing B WA, JOHRIRERE 2 AT E A1 that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
services are recognised to the extent of the milestone R B 2 4 SN R R A T T A A S ( receipts through the expected life of the financial
payments earned in accordance with the applicable W) T LA, FrRCE R A BT A B asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
performance requirements and contractual terms and, SRIEIR AT RS | TRRRSE BEA e E AT recognition.
where appropriate, as the related costs are incurred. ST R LR PR 2 A i
Payments received that are related to future performance vii Dividend income is recognised when the right to Vil i SERC AT SR R R e 7 PR
are deferred and recorded as revenues as they are earned receive payment is established.
over the specified future performance periods.
25 Leasing 25 &
iii Subject to the terms as stated in the technology il DAB GRS NERE T I
transfer agreements and the buyers’ success in 1E PR R T 0 A TR 2L, AR Ak B L Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and Rl FH A +5 1 A FE 2 4B ARy L B R [ s s 7
commercialisation of the products to which the TRER AN RE M A BRI S . A SR rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are A NZHE . A BT A ERE .
technology transferred is applied, the Group may WO NERFIE B, A R R classified as operating leases.
receive additional royalty income or profit sharing
income in the future. Should there be any royalty Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense AT AT 4 AR L G TR A B s 53
income or sharing of profit, they will be recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where B HAhE B S E S AR IR R Y R A
when the right to receive the income is established. another systematic basis is more representative of the o RETAIATE A 2 SUAFH S A E 4 I R A B
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased Zo
iv  Service income is recognised when services are iv RIS AT AL AR RS AR asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into ST GRS, BIE B EER
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a . BETRAEF A LA EARE RIS AL B s
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is A HoAth S sE AR AL I G A SR TR 1 Rt
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a #E,
straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
2.6 Borrowing costs fE R
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are

assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
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2.6

2.7

28

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in
statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which they become receivable.

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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2.9

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share-based payment reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in statement of comprehensive income such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to capital reserve. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will continue to be
held in share-based payment reserve.
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2.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current and
deferred tax.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the
reporting period multiplied by the taxable profit. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in statement of
comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEESEUEME (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11  Property, plant and equipment 211 . BB RERE
Property, plant and equipment held for use in the FEE R s, BRIEATBUR@MSE, s
production or supply of goods or services, or for SRR AR A B AT AT TR A
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated W) ¥R
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of M. R AR T E S ResEE S, R AR
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual TEEAL PR L AR A B .
values over their estimated useful lives, using the EIR I e T A RS, FRREEM T
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual {hEtea)r ENIR. Y2, B RS T UL E AN
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end AT
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The
estimated useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment are as follows:
Leasehold improvements 5 years B FERE BEE
Machinery and equipment 5—10 years HESL T S0 5—104E
Motor vehicles 5 years R B
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised Y. R BRI B R B A T e
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are FEHA & Ao 0] H 48 2 ) 25 e U he s . M.
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any T M s T H B pE R e 2 AT 2 B s 48 (3%
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an SZTEH 2z BT a TE R e S AR TR S 2 = RE s TR
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as TREAIE H U R 2 AR REST N R 7R .
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
statement of comprehensive income.

212  Work-in-progress 212 TEEM

Work-in-progress is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, cost of development
including costs that have been incurred for the provision
of pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Work-in-progress (Continued)

Where the outcome of a pharmaceutical development and
clinical research contract or service can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the
reporting date, as measured by the proportion that
contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to
the total contract costs or the proportion that contract
revenue billed or recognised for work performed to date
bear to the total contract sums, whichever is the lower,
except where this would not be representative of the stage
of completion.

Where the outcome of a contract or service cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable that
they will be recoverable.

When it is probable that the total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in statement of comprehensive income.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is
included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories,

including financial assets held for trading and those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

- it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- itis a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

- the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in statement of comprehensive income
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the other income line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in note 3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Confinued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables and
other receivables) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest and principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

- Disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 90 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in statement of
comprehensive income. When trade receivables and
other receivables are considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to statement of comprehensive income.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through statement of comprehensive income to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the

financial liabilities are either held for trading or it is those
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

58 | VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

213

R I B BRI T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEEFEREE #)

SR TR #)
SRERERA TR

SRR B 3AT 2 S B AT SUBA TR g & =] 22
M HASMARMRATAZ e BN BASMAR
A,

A TR

A T RA R TEBRAEE I TE AUREASR
BRI E DA RIS AR AR fIA AR RT
Z A TR A% BT AR R E BT AR

BRI

BPERIAE TR SR £ e MRS A B e T 3B
BRI RS Jrik. EEER STl H R B4
- CRFEITA B SO BT TR PR RS P 3
B A REAATA R E AT SRt
TR, e (M aiE EERTHE
MUK HEERS 2 ARTT AR 2 A#

LB B S e R A SRR

AEE NN Z SR AR

I RS B R A3 B) TR B e A LA R (R
sl B HILEEET AR, RIEEREA A RREE
FHS R ARG SR .

AR LB B IHE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been incurred principally for the purpose of

repurchasing in the near future; or

- on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

- itis aderivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

— the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in statement of comprehensive income

excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including other payables and
accruals and short term loan are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Convertible notes

Conversion options that are not settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of equity instruments are recognised as financial
instruments carried at fair value through profit or loss.

On initial recognition, the convertible bonds with the
derivatives component as a whole are designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The
entire convertible bonds are initially recognised at fair
value on the date of issue and are subsequently measured
at fair value until extinguished on conversion or
redemption. Changes in the fair value of the entire
convertible bonds are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as they arise. Interest on
convertible bonds designated as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss is included in the fair value
gain or loss for that period.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the convertible bonds designated as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in statement of comprehensive income.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date
of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the part no
longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in statement of
comprehensive income. A cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of
the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in statement
of comprehensive income.
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2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

‘When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or
loss, only if terms are substantially different, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses. Provision for an onerous contract is
recognised when the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received. The unavoidable costs
under a contract reflect the least net cost of existing from
the contract, which is the lower of the cost fulfilling the
contract and any compensation or penalties arising from
failure to fulfil the contract.
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(a)

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provision (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(1) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member

of a Group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
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2.17

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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31

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD), United
States Dollars (*“USD”) and Swiss Franc (“CHF”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities. In
addition, the conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Government.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of
the transactions denominated and settled in RMB.
Foreign exchange risk also arises from certain
financial assets and convertible notes which are
denominated in HKD, USD and CHF. The Group
currently does not hedge its foreign exchange

exposure.

At 31 December 2013, if USD and CHF had
weakened/strengthened by 5% respectively against
Renminbi with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year would have been
increased/decreased approximately RMB4,697,000.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 M RREE )
31  Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MERR @
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) T L ()

(i) Interest rate risks (ii) B

The Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate.
The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from
borrowings and its convertible notes. Borrowings
and convertible notes arranged at variable rates and
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The short term borrowings of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 bore
interest at floating rates. The convertible notes bear
fixed interest rate during the Interest Period. The
interest rate and repayment terms of the borrowings
and convertible notes outstanding at the end of the
reporting period are disclosed in notes 25 and 26
respectively.

It is the Group’s policy to keep its short term
borrowings at floating rate of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider restructure the
Group’s credit facilities should the need arise.

(iii) Price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk because
investments held by the Group are classified in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value through profit or loss. The Group has not
mitigated its price risk arising from investments in
securities financial assets.

For the Group’s investments that are publicly traded,
the fair value is determined with reference to quoted
market prices. For the Group’s investments that are
not publicly traded, the Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the reporting date.
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At 31 December 2013, if the market prices of these
securities financial assets had increased/decreased
by 10% with all other variables held constant,
Group’s post=tax loss for the year ended would have

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 MBRREE #)
31  Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MERR @
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) T A (40D

(iii) Price risks (Continued) (iii) fERE JELRE (48

BEF AT A=, GUERER S L
TR/ T BR10% CHAh R RARFE AEE), ASREAER
RIEGHURA LA T 28

been changed as follows:
2013 2012
—% = %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AR®TT
Post-tax loss increase/(decrease) g R tER N/ Qe
- Market prices increased by 10% — {8 ik 10% (82) (180)
- Market prices decreased by 10% —THE T 10% 82 180
Credit risk ®) 15 F Ja g

The Group’s credit risk arises from trade receivables and
bank balances.

For the sales of products to third party customers, there is
a concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the largest five customers contribute
around 1% (2012: 1%) of the balance. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that credit is only granted to
customers with an appropriate credit history and a good
reputation. The exposure to credit risk is closely

monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 Jinp il gsg (ﬁ) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 Hﬂ'ﬁﬂ%ﬂ (a)
31 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 W45 R (42) 31 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HERK ()
©  Liquidity risk ©  HEEER @ Marketrisk (Continued) © VAR ED
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining N
» Y . . ] ,
sufficient cash and bank balances. The liquidity of the FAE AT ED v R R B RS A R R R A MR Company Al
Group is adequately managed and monitored by i, AEEARE T E NS LN R RS R, I Decetes 3013
maintaining sufficient cash, which is available to meet its TR RAAREEAFEE R E AR —® o =
zlclmtlnuou:};1 ogeraUO;laJ need}j In thel ozmonl‘ Of, ;16 Less than Between 1 Between 2
Ilfctors, the Group does not have any signincant iquidity 1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total
risk. AR AR 1-2 4 2-54F &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
The table below analyses the Group’ s financial liabilities TFEEAAL H A F 2 R ) B H ARBTIE NERRTIE AERT I NERT I
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining SR EESMaE. WRSELSSRATHEES
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. o )
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual Convertible notes ﬂ&}ﬁﬁf 100,644 100,644
undiscounted cash flows. Other payables and accruals oA BEAT M R 7,848 - - 7,848
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfTF4Ta] 20,369 - - 20,369

At 31 December 2012

Group A R A= H
Less than Between 1 Between 2
At 31 December 2013 1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total
“F-=%1+"A=1+—H Sk 124 2-54 arat
Less than Between 1 Between 2 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total NS S0 N S AEREBTTE  ARETIT
DR 1-24¢ 254 frat
RMB OEO RMB 0(10 RMB OT) RMB 00? Convertible notes AR {E 1,020 - 91,875 92.895
NEHT 7 ARIET 70 ARBTE  ARBT Other payables and accruals HoABHEN SR A B 4,380 - - 4,380
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAF2 ] 18,443 - - 18,443
Convertible notes CIE:3:gi=ed 100,644 - - 100,644
Other payables and accruals LR RO A 2 17.414 - - 17,414
Bank borrowing SRATIERK 3,000 - - 3.000 32 Capital risk management 3.2 BARREE
At 31 December 2012
“EF-THETTA=ETH The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEE B R R E ) B R AR, RBCRE
Lessthan  Between 1 Between 2 safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going A2 AFA R, S B B R 5L 4 (s
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total concern in order to provide returns to the shareholders R,
DTALAE 124 2-5 4 it and benefits for other stakeholders. The Group’s overall
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 strategy remains unchanged from prior years.
AE®TIL  AR¥TT  ARWTxT ARWTX
The capital structure of the Group represents equity AAEEG AR ER AT R B (S, O s
Convertible notes TR 1,020 - 91,875 92,895 attributable to owners of the parent, comprising issued T AR A 23 4 R
Other payables and accruals HAbREAT SO AT A 16,244 - - 16,244 share capital and retained earnings.
Bank borrowing SRATIEX 3,000 - - 3,000
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In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to the
shareholders or issue new shares.
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3.3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

—  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

—— Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

——  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

All of the Group’s financial instruments are included in
level 1 as of 31 December 2013 and 2012.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices on the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are

observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in

level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for

similar instruments.

Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

There were no level 3 financial instruments for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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(a)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 2, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision for impairment of receivables

The Group provides for impairment of receivables based
on an assessment of the collectability of trade and other
receivables. Provisions for impairment are applied to
trade and other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of receivables
and doubtful debt expense in the period in which such

estimate is changed.
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(b)

(c)

(d

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Net realisable value of work-in-progress

Provision for slowing-moving work-in-progress is based on the
aged of the respective project and the accomplishment of
certain stage of milestone during the process of
development. The assessment of the provision amount
involved management judgement and estimation. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the carrying value of work-in-progress and provision
charge/write=back in the period such estimate changed.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines that the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimation is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions. Depreciation charge
will be reassessed where useful live is different from the
previous estimation, or it will write-off or write-down
obsolete assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current income tax provision
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period

in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilized. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

4

(b)

(©)

(€}

2013 4 W&
ANNUAL REPORT
BE_F-=HF+_A=+—HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

EEETHEEA AN ERZ AR @)

TEE ] A

TESHAE A B R AR T 2 T E R (Pl
FRARHITTE) 2 MERE BRI . L A A R
TR i A L A Bt o g BBl SRR 2 3 B
BEER, AR EEEREMAE R R RERR A
JEE v R T L R A (B 4 AD)

Wk R R AR

AEEE BT IRE. B PR R R R AT
WA, SMEMGETER R RO RERYEE. R
Bttty RIS R sh AR . BT S e AT 3R
FRRAT R RS E R RSO A SeRT
fhiFt sy, EHEERRTE A, BRERE
IRME RS ¥R R B B OB T v 1R B AR R
.

BT

AR £ ZZALE T AR SRR, e TSR 2R
TR ERHIMT. 235 St SR A A, e i DL
R R EBIMENREE. AR BRI RS R
SRAIT AR SR, ARZEEHER S E
SRR RN R AR LU SR AE AR e K A iR

SR BTk 2 W AR TR U ) SR T 1S AR TR 3
P T R R AR AR A IR AR 155 1R T A T S AT gk
ST (5 P W s 2 R R TR IR T LAMIERR . RS PR
HSH 2 AR BN

BEeMueEXARAAITI



2013 4 B #
ANNUAL REPORT

BE-F-F+_A=+—HILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(e)

®

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY(CONTINUED)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Impairment of property, plant and equipment is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amounts have been determined based on fair
value less costs to sell calculations or market valuations. These

calculations require the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset value
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs to sell or net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could affect the net present value used in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of the operations.

Fair value of convertible notes

The Group makes reference to the independent valuer’s
valuations to determine the fair value of convertible notes
at fair value through profit or loss which in turn are
determined using a valuation technique, the Monte Carlo
Simulation Model. Judgment is required in the
calculation of such valuation. Changes in the underlying
assumptions  could materially impact  other

comprehensive income and profit and loss, respectively.
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION BREBAESIBEN
Breakdown of the revenue from all services is as follows: W BHAI D
2013 2012
e St BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT PN T
Analysis of revenue by category: We A 5338
Contracted clinical research services A B ) BB BT RS 13,958 16,492
OUEVPS) dical servi BRFFY A — A5 T B 1
€T medical service
Total A 14,931 28,688

Turnover and contribution to profit from operations by
segment has not been presented as over 90% of the
Group’s turnover was derived from the pharmaceutical
registration, application and testing in the PRC and all
assets were located in the PRC for both years.

Information about major customers is as follows:
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years

contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group is as

follows:

B A AR BRI 90% <« 8 SERR I A B FA v [ 2 2EY)
REME FREELARIRR, TR I L A A T
R, e A B E S R B R 2 R
T

AHBEERF 2 ¥k

FH S 3 5 5 2 WG AR 48 s S 10% 0L |
Z T

2013 2012

e —EmTUE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T ARBTIT
Customer D KD 2,620 -
Customer E HFE 2,392 -
Customer F HEF 2,240 -
Customer B 2B - 5,300
Customer C ZFC - 4,500
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative

expenses are analysed as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

BREA RSB TIO T

6 OTHER INCOME 6 Hpe A
2013 2012
TR —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABRBTIT AR¥TIT
Government subsidies EHEED 388 258
Fair value gain on financial assets A R E IS IR R R AR Sl - 227
at fair value through profit or loss BEZ A G EEEI S
Dividends income TR A 33 42
Compensation income BRI 55 308
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWZE. BH B W - 56
and equipment
Reversal of impairment loss on HAFEBCGR B e E (M) 69 2, 400
other receivables (Note 19)
Reversal of impairment loss on RS IR S AR e =] (P 18) - 150
trade receivables (Note 18)
Over provision of legal compensation AR 45 B AR P L A B (e s 650 -
in prior years
Others HAth 1, 438 270
Total &t 2,633 3,711

During the year, the Group received approximately
RMB 388,000 (2012: approximately RMB258,000)

government subsidies towards the research and

development projects.

AE AR S W AT 550 H KB B AR
388, 0007t (—=F——4F: ARMH258,00070) .

7 FINANCE COSTS - NET 7 iE 2 NS 3
2013 2012
—E = ZE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANBEHTIT AR¥T T
Finance costs: HiEEHR:
— Exchange losses —E AR R - (1,416)
— Interest on bank loan wholly repayable within five year =~ TAFE N RIS B R T B R S (157) (53)
— Imputed interest on convertible bonds — TR EA R E (4, 108) (3,715)
— Others —Hofih (69) (86)
(4, 334) (5, 270)
Finance income: BTSN -
— Exchange gains — B SeliciE 567 97
— Interest income —F B 8 22
575 119
Finance (costs)/income — net A - 9 (3,759) (5,151)
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2013 2012
R ZETAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT PN o i
Depreciation (Note 12) e (fEEL2) 1, 790 2,713
Auditor’s remuneration #HirEH 599 630
Employee benefit expenses A& 5,220 10, 410
Compensation AEE & H 4,373 5,177
Operating lease payment BEHERH 1,022 1,013
Fair value loss on financial assets T AEAFEB IR R 2 SRl E 200 -
at fair value through profit or loss A e A
Loss on disposal of property, plant B, s KA isiEiE 545 -
and equipment
Impairment loss on other receivables FAbRESGRITRE R (EEL9) 1,933 524
(Note 19)
9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9 JR RIS H
2013 2012
—HF = TR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT ANE¥T T
Wages and salaries T RKEHE 4, 268 7,768
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BAAEF T E 918 2,196
Employee share-based payment J& BB TR - 365
Other staff benefits HeAih, 34 81
Total &t 5,220 10,410
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 9 BREEATH @@ 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 9 BEEFSH @)
(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (a) HHESHEEEN S (b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) TAmmaE A+ (&)
. . . . £/ A -
N O - — . The emoluments of each of the five highest paid A e R B B A A N RS 1, 000, 00075
Director’s fee Salaries and bonus Provident fund contribution ~ Employee share-based payment Total employees are less than RMBLOO0,0(X).
—FEE Z® T et e e ZEeEE & ZESHE RS R RO
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 ) )
R T AR AT OADT AW AR AN AR AT Duing h you, 10 coclumers ver puid by the Gromp - JKSFIA, AN L BRI LANK
to any director of the Company or the five highest paid [N D e 5 P W T2 = T NG e [ AN S|
;ngim’ Xia GUO - - 81 544 66 15 - 47 147 606 individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Rz BERD, e REREE (R, TR A AR
=
Viarin Yoo Met SONG - - 5 - . 24 - w o " Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the BTN S
FEH directors has waived any emoluments in the year.
Tao FENG - - - - - 6 6
i
S - - - - - . . 10 INCOME TAX 10 P8R E R
B (BT
%ﬁm Xin ZHANG - - - - - 6 6 No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as A A R A B A N A T s A AT AR A,
Paul CONTOMICHALOS R R R R R 4 7 the Group had no estimated assessable profit generated in WOl s AR SR E R B (T8, )
Paul CONTOMICHALOS .
Hong Kong for the year (2012: Nil).
Sclllou:l’uan wu 20 50 - - - 20 50
£
Lt Lsng ot . . 194 - 16 - 210 PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated on the rh B S TSR T AR D B A B R SR AR . A
Jing An Zhang estimated assessable profit for the year according to the E—-=Ft+-A=+—HEEAFERREEHE 2
i relevant laws and regulations. The applicable income tax 15%-25% (“F——4F: 15%25%) . ARER, b
T:}j: 20 s0 29 1120 132 55 - 112 91 1337 rate is ranging from 15% to 25% as at 31 December 2013 AR A IR A, ISl BRI
(2012: 15-25%). During the year, b3 78 8 4 257 FRARE], I s RERRAIRA R, LR
WEEARAT, BB LBEREARAY, A BRI A IR A F] Sy g R R R SR R B
Notes. - TR EAECREFNARAR, LB RE HUE 5 B st A R B SR A R B A SRR
o ' BHEARRAT and WRIRRIEMRETIE have A1
1) The director was resigned on 24 May 2012. 1. FE 201295 H 24 HEERE applied .to the PRC tax authorit).r as High-tech Enterprises
2) The director was appointed on 24 May 2012. 2. EF 201285 H 24 H S AT and subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax at 15%.
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) B =10 PG The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated O S TR ST
statement of comprehensive income represents:
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in EEERFMALOE -2 (ZF— 24, —8)
the Group for the year included two (2012: two) directors AATIFEE. MMAFEANE O Mot 2=
. . _ _ . N 2013 2012
whose emolument are reflected in the analysis presented #(TE-TAE =4 2B g —p
above. The emoluments payable of the remaining three - - -
(2012: three) individuals during the year are as follows: RMB’000 RMB O(E]
AR¥T T ANE¥TI0
2013 2012 PRC enterprise income tax WA TSR
e - — current year — A 53 44
RMB’000 RMB’000 = under/(over)-provision in prior years — LARUAE FEARG Al G BE ) F - 69
I SS5 NERMETIT Deferred taxation (Note 15) IBMERRIE (FfE15) - -
Salaries and allowances it & SRS 259 1, 560
Employee share-based payment B TRk - 84 N
Py pay . e Total &t 53 113
Retirement benefits scheme contributions B AR ST St 132 93
Total &5t 391 1,737
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10  INCOME TAX (Continued) 10 FRRER @
The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before tax differs DISHERT (F51H) /R aan AEE R
from the theoretical amount that would arise using PRC rh R S S w5 SRR AR R
Enterprise Income Tax rate as follows:
2013 2012
e St ZHE T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANBRHT I ANEWTIT
(Loss) / profit before tax BrARAT (G5 1H) /28 (30, 966) 3,231
Calculated at tax rate of 25% LA25%R A TR (7, 741) 808
Under-provision in prior years AL RERR AN - 69
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AR IR 4,754 2,681
Utilisation of tax loss not recognised AMERRAR TR 2 FIH (424) (514)
Revenue not taxable for taxation purpose AT PN - (3,013)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AATHATS 3 P R 3, 464 82
for tax purpose
Income tax expense AN BE RS A 2 53 113
11 BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSSES)/ EARNINGS 11 HEA RS ER)ER
PER SHARE
(a) Basic (losses)/earnings per share (2) FERREA (B T
Basic (losses)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing fEIEAR R/ B F T E R A B
the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company by i it BRARA: (B30 ) /81 RS AR B E B 7
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue TR R
during the year.
2013 2012
St S - -TAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARWETI0
(Loss)/ profit attributable to owners of AL A N EAS (B8 /EF) (31,028) 3,207
the Company (RMB’ 000) (A RHETIT)
Weighted average number of ordinary EEA T E BT R (TR 364, 665 364, 308

shares in issue (thousands)

FEA MRS TR SR R (8.50)

Basic (losses)/earnings per share
(RMB cents per share)

0.88
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11 BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSSES)/EARNINGS 11 HA T MG BER)/ B ()
PER SHARE (Continued)
®) Diluted (losses) /earnings per share (b) TR () /2
The calculation of the diluted (losses)/earnings per share SRS OB /RPINEEERENARA R
for the year is based on the (loss)/profit attributable to ordinary TR A R /R ISR B R A 2 AT
equity shareholders and adjusted to eliminate the interest EFRAE . O P2 450, 731, 000/ (=
expense less the tax effect. The weighted average number T—4F: 453, 118, 000[%) , EEtH AT G R
of approximately 450,731,000 (2012: approximately FRCRES T80 T 452 HH FOB R R T B R IR TR - 3247 1
453,118,000) ordinary shares after adjusting for the effect P8 0 VS 1 0 3 I 486, 066, 000/ ( —F— 4,
of the dilutive potential ordinary shares to be issued to the 88, 810, 000) MIREE(E LR, FHEMIT:
exercise of the options granted under all relevant Share
Option Schemes and the conversion of convertible notes
as detailed below of approximately 86,066,000(2012:
approximately 88,810,000) shares, calculated as follows:
2013 2012
—E A ZHB—TAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT NEWT It
(Loss) /profit attributable to owners A TR NERS (E18) /8] (31, 028) 3, 207
of the Company
Interest expense on convertible TR AR S (PRfE) 4, 108 3,715
notes (net of tax)
(Loss)/profit used to determine diluted FH LG4 R (iE54R) / (26, 920) 6, 922
earnings per share BRMEE
Weighted average number of ordinary L A3 e R - 251 364, 665 364, 308
shares in issue (thousands) (Tl
Adjustment for: L
— Effect of deemed issue of ordinary TREEA A F] B ST H S AT 7B 86, 066 88, 810
shares under the Company’s Al fEEf T B AR 1
Share Option Schemes and the conversion FITEEREE (TR
of convertible notes (thousands)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares F A R A A T R R 450, 731 453, 118

for diluted earnings per share
(thousands)

P (RO

No diluted (losses)/earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012 is presented as the assumed
conversion of convertible notes would result in an

increase/decrease in loss per share respectively.

E PR A T ) B T BRI AR R Bl T REE AT R, T
B SR BRI s IR, HAREIIEE—F
— =R CF-CHE T A= HIEREEE
P PR R R
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 12 Mk, WG RRE—AEE

Leasehold Machinery and
improvements equipment Motor vehicles Total
FEEREE RS KH &5l
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
NEHTIT AR#ETTT  ARWETT ARFETT

At 1 January 2012 BoE—TE—H—H
Cost AR 5,595 24,985 823 31,403
Accumulated depreciation i (5,331) (13,734) (815) (19,880)
Net book amount T 264 11,251 8 11,523
Year ended 31 December 2012 R =& — 4+ H=+—H
Opening net book amount GEIRE BRI 264 11,251 8 11,523
Additions A 77 87 645 809
Disposals Hifs - - (304) (304)
Depreciation (Note 8) I8 (ffieks) (221) (2,364) (128) (2,713)
Wiritten back Jea| - - 301 301
Closing net book amount TR B 120 8,974 522 9,616
At 31 December 2012 BT T H=+—H
Cost A 5,672 25,072 1,164 31,908
Accumulated depreciation S (5.552) (16,098) (642) (22,292)
Net book amount [ B R 120 8,974 522 9,616
Year ended 31 December 2013 it & —=4F+ - H=+—H
Opening net book amount HREHE LR R 120 8,974 522 9,616
Additions AHA R - 1 - 1
Disposals HeE - (5,583) - (5,583)
Depreciation (Note 8) 8 (BitiEs) (66) (1,597) 127) (1,790)
Written back EEE - 5,037 - 5,037
Closing net book amount HRTE B AR B 54 6,832 395 7,281
At 31 December 2013 RoE—=Ft+_"H=1+—H
Cost %N 5,672 19,490 1,164 26,326
Accumulated depreciation At MdfE (5,618) (12,658) (769) (19,045)
and impairment
Net book amount HETH 54 6,832 395 7,281
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13 NEW DRUGS TECHNOLOGY - GROUP 13 B AN
RMB’000

NEHETIT
At 1 January 2012 RoF—"%F—H—H
Cost SR 16,681
Accumulated amortisation and impairment  ZFTH RS K IRE (16,681)
Net book amount WRTAITEME -
Year ended 31 December 2012 R-F—HE+ZH=1+—H
Opening net book amount e 1 P (S A AR -
Amortisation charge A HHERS -
Disposal AR -
Impairment ASHEAE -
Closing net book amount R E AR -
At 31 December 2012 RoF—F T A=1—H
Cost AR 16,681
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 274 S K A (16,681)
Net book amount HR T RHE
Year ended 31 December 2013 PoFE = A=
Opening net book amount ARTEFHME AR AR -
Amortisation charge A -
Closing net book amount B TAT BB A R -
At 31 December 2013 RoFR-=FEF A =+—H
Cost 53 16,681
Accumulated amortisation and impairment  ZF1 RS KR E (16,681)

MRTETFHE

Net book amount

The new drugs technology included above have finite
useful lives, over which the assets are amortised. The
amortisation period for development costs incurred on
the Group’s new drugs technology is five years.

No amortization charges (2012: RMB Nil) is included in

the “administrative expenses” during the year.

BRI BT AR R AR, MR B
MINBES . AR R EE BT AT EY M BB A 2 B8
AR A T4

AEFEAENARAREEN, —F % &

EeRuEXHRAA|83
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 14 PR A IR 2 — AR AT 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 14 B A EIR AR — R ATF] (8
(CONTINUED)
2013 2012
—% —‘,5515 :g—,:ﬁz Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
RMB ODP_ RMB OD_O and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
ARBT ARWET T registered capital
Unlisted shares, at cost HE LT A E Ry — Al 30,374 30, 374 . . . ) _ e
L L b s ATIER PR R RN FEREET CEA LAY v o hE A
Less: provision for impairment W PREER (29, 646) (29, 646) R
728 728 "
Shares indirectly held by the Company:
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 17) TR B 2wl R IE (BfEELT) 49, 587 49, 587 AT R AT -
Less: provision for impairment W IRERR (37, 502) (37, 502) -
12, 085 12, 085 bR fE A E Y% Beijing, the PRC, The research and US$865,000 100%
Total At 12,813 12,813 HIEAHE Limited liability company  development of new
drug preparation, raw
The cost of the unlisted shares is based on the book value of 3k bR A BCARAEL) i A A2 7 4 B A4H H B 1 materials, supplementary
the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries attributable to A} g e AR S R 2 MR I (R materials and biodrugs
the Group on the date of the Group Reorganisation. technological transfer
and services
The amounts due from subsidiaries classified as non-current FEWE B A e i AdEmEEE, WEEAE
assets are unsecured, interest-free and considered equity in . BEMGEEEE.
nature. EREREAEIEN R, BOCRBMF AN, 86500037 100%
) B A PR A ] ARFELAT JEATER BN
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 AN =R F——F+-H=1+—H ORI T A
December 2013 and 2012 are as follows: ZFEMBEA TR T L T Y
%
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held TR T R T Hanzhong, the PRC, Sales and manufacturing US$600,000 51%
registered capital ARRAE Limited liability company of active pharmaceutical
ingredients products
A E] B FEAT R A TR FERE EHATREAY Fir i B 2R
e WHETEAREENT  REEE, BB REEAREM  600000%T %
Shares directly held by the Company: Gl FREHEAT] RS it
AT EERA R
Venturepharm Laboratories British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), Investment holding US$100 100% VPSCRO Group Inc. British Virgin Islands, Tnzctive Us$1 100%
(BVI) Limited (“VP (BVD)”)  Limited liability company Limited liability
company
Venovo Pharma US Inc. British Virgin Islands (“BVT”), Investment holdin US$1 100% . .
R & VPSCRO Group Inc. LR, ((BVL) g 1570 100%
Limited liability company T
AIRFEAT
Venturepharm Laboratories W ELHESE ( TBVIL ) R 10037 100%
(BVI) Limited (“VP (BVI)”) ARBEELATF
Venovo Pharma US Inc. WEELRE ( [BVI ) s 13670 100%

AR
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14 B A TR — AAT ()

(CONTINUED)
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
registered capital
AIE BTt 0 B 2 A E A TR EEA TR AR fir RS
AEEEA
Shares indirectly held by the Company:(Continued)
A TIMHERARG . (8
R AT RHERSIPE Hainan, the PRC, The research and US$360,000 100%
Limited liability development of drugs,
company natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological
transfer of and services
for the research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and
synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamic and
clinical research of drugs
ERA R R R PR, SEYSEECE 2 NN 360,00037C 100%
AREEAH RAREE T B B
DS e BB A Y BE
RIREE R B & TR EEh
otk IR S
BRS¢ R R AR 5
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14 WA TN —EAT ()

(CONTINUED)
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
registered capital
ASIEz LA B R R E A TEREEY BB TRA fir i Aa
REf A

Shares indirectly held by the Company:(Continued)

ARAFMERA R ()

b et bl B EE] Beijing, the PRC, The research and US$200,000 100%

AR Limited liability development of drugs,

company natural drugs and

synthetic drugs;
technological transfer
of and services for the
research and development
of biodrugs, natural
drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic
and clinical research of
drugs

Jen a2 B e B EER B hEdL, ST B B3 2E 200,000357C 100%

AHRAH HIREEAT] FAREE i BB FEE
WET B PR A P8R
FIREE i R TRAE R

BT M s B

LI 5T M AR 5T
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2013 4 FE# & Mﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
ANNUAL REPORT  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE 2=+ A=+—HIk4FE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 14 MR AT — AT @)

(CONTINUED)
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
registered capital
Ak ERLIEEYE S PN FEERERY CEITRAY Bir g
EEE A

Shares indirectly held by the Company:(Continued)
AAEHEEREARA . (6D

e ER A AR Beijing, the PRC, The research and US$200,000 100%
HIRAT] Limited liability development of new
company drugs, natural drugs,
and synthetic drugs;
technological transfer of

and services for research
and development of
biodrugs, natural drugs
and synthetic drugs,
pharmacodynamic and
clinical research of drugs

IR E R e B AR R, WEFE P BrEE2E 200,0003E 7T 100%
ARAHE ARELEAT FEREET RS ST

T A B A A 4E

REREE T B 5 B

BT, e

BERURT R B R
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 14 B R A FIlE — AT (H)

(CONTINUED)
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
registered capital
A ek It B R P B A FEEAERY CEATBAY Fr i g
A A

Shares indirectly held by the Company:(Continued)
RAFIMER ARG (8)

R E 2B B 2R Beijing, the PRC, The research and US$200,000 100%
HRAA] Limited liability development of drugs,
company natural drugs and synthetic

drugs; technological
transfer of and services

for the research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic
and clinical research of
drugs

e E 2R RN PR, TF 5 R BE B 2 200,0005%7C 100%
BIRAT] ARTLAT RIREE i e R T

5 A Bk A i

FRIRBE N B R EE 2

Do R BN

BRI SR R SY
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

R E R B AR

14 WA EIHERS — ANTE ()

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Name Place ofincorporation

and kind of legal entity

b AL MR Mk A

Principal activities

TR

Particulars of
issued share capital/
registered capital

OB TR A/
HEE A

Equity
interest Held

Fir iR

Shares indirectly held by the Company:(Continued)
AN FIMERA B . ()

R A B,
AHIRAT]

Taizhou, the PRC,
Limited liability
company

RN 2B BRI
FBRAT]

FHEIZM,
HRFATAF]

The research and
development of drugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological
transfer of and services for
the research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic
and clinical research of
drugs

WEST M BREE S

FIREE G R FREE
BF 52 2 B R A= A3 i

KRGS M A REE T Z

BT R

RMB1,000,000

A EH1,000,0007T

8L\ Z BB 9 B R R 5

100%

100%

Note: None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or any time during
the year.
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15

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS — GROUP

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the
applicable  taxation rates prevailing in the
countries/places in which the Group operates.

No deferred taxation was charged to equity during the
year (2012: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately RMB17,976,000 (2012:
approximately RMB11,338,000) available for offsetting
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Unrecognised

tax losses will expire in various dates up to the year 2017.

15
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BFERTH — A

AR FE RS 2 FH 2 98 IO A6 T 7 4 P FH 22 e e LA
FRF 2 SR A e 6 P 4 (R At B

AAEE MRS (TR T ) .

FERARSEH, AEEA R A R17,976,0007T

(ZF 5 #IAR®EN,338,0007C) ZARHHR
R ] AR AR R o P TR AR AR
2R, HUlE MRS A 2 M R R R IR
HEE. AERZREAERSNEE T —LEN
IR B HAZHA.
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16 WORK-IN-PROGRESS - GROUP 16 EER—A4EE 17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 17 SR T RIAM — W R A AT
GROUP AND COMPANY
2013 2012
TE = ZE T Group A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANER¥TIT NEWT T Financial
assets at fair
Work-in-progress TERE Loans and value through
—Cost — A 93, 476 96, 138 receivables profit or loss Total
— provision for impairment —1E EE R E (88, 729) (78, 527) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
of work-in-progress e fAE
PR 2R FR
Work-in-progress-net &t 4,747 17,611 TR 2 aRhEE At

ANR¥T T AR¥TIT AR¥TIT

The movement in the impairment_ of work-in-progress for HEME _F—-=F+_A=+—HE#Hz8H Assets as per consolidated statement fex A B R 0 e
the year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows: s of financial position 31 December 2013 R =+ —A=+—H
Trade and other receivables (excluding RN SR R At R R 2,523 - 2,523
Congg}::gd Non—contraf:ted Ti_tgl prepayments) (Note 18 and 19) (NSRS (MFE18Fie)
T ﬂi’ETF&‘] ) o Financial assets at fair value through Feon e EE MR SRR - 816 816
Ag‘% :'gg—g J\%m';ﬁ :[?2,50 J\BEM%‘ :l-_m.?% profit or loss (Note 20) EEEEE (Mffsr0)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) HEeRBESEEY (Hhidn 2,596 - 2,596
At 1 January »—H—H 37,978 40, 549 78, 527
Provision for impairment loss W AR RS 9, 522 680 10, 202 Total A 5,119 816 5,935
recognised for the year
At 31 December w+=H=+—H 47, 500 41,229 88, 729 Assets as per consolidated statement EA MR R A
of financial position 31 December 2012 R H=+—H
The impairment for contracted work-in-progress was due B AT #7528 A Tl B R th ML A4 A H Trade and other receivables (excluding R B R L A BB RR 5,577 - 5,577
to the exceeding of total contract cost over the total MEHEHE, AT RAERE DAER RS B R A prepayments) (Note 18 and 19) (NSRS (FRE1sfig)
contract value while the impairment for non-contracted SEEF IR AR CAFEREE . Financial assets at fair value through A RBEERHARTR - L815 1,815
work-in-progress was not due to the suspension of profit or loss (Note 20) EREE (Miwt0)
non-contracted PDS projects. Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) Bl RBIEEEY (kD) 2,771 - 2,771
The movement in the impairment of work-in-progress for EEMBE-Z—"F+_HA=+—HEBH 8 Total it 8,348 1,815 10,163
the year ended 31 December 2012 is as follows: wrr:
Contracted Non-contracted Total
[REES) AFHTH A=l
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
NEHETIT ANE#TFT AREW¥TIT
At 1 January m—H—H 31, 325 40, 549 71,874
Provision for impairment loss W AT E R 6, 653 - 6, 653
recognised for the year
At 31 December Bt A=1+—H 37,978 40, 549 78, 627
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 17 &R THUM - AEEEAAT @) 17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 17 SR T B — AEEEAAT &)
GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED) GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Group (Continued) AEEE () Company ALNE]
Other financial liabilities Financial
HAh 4 e fE assets at fair
RMB’ 000 Loans and value through
NEMTTE receivables profit or loss Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Liabilities as per consolidated statement of M EIRI R Al
financial position 31 December 2013 WoE—=Ft+=-A=+—H Eggigw
Convertible notes A 95, 479 £SO R > ﬁﬁﬂ{%% o3t
Other payables and accruals oAt AR AT 22,579 MNEBTFIT MNEHETIT PN T
Bank borrowing (Note 26) SRATRER (BHE26) 3, 000
Assets as per consolidated statement WER L EER —F—=
Total =El 121, 058 of financial position 31 December 2013 F+—H=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 14)  HEUCH B A IO (FiET14) 12,085 - 12,085
Liabilities as per consolidated statement SEEIRE AL Other receivables (Note 19) Hfh SR (BEE19) 8,698 - 8,698
of financial position 31 December 2012 BRoEFz—-—_F+_-A=+—H Financial assets at fair value through A AEEERE R - 816 816
Convertible notes GEHeEe 91,875 profit or loss (Note 20) ZEMEE (Ffwt20)
Other payables and accruals H A A e A+t 2 17, 264 Cash and cash equivalent (Note 21) B RBESFEY (FhE2) 690 - 690
Bank borrowing (Note 26) SRITIERR (BHF26) 3,000
Total ant 21,473 816 22,289
Total &5t 112,139
Assets as per consolidated statement M RREEER _F— 4
of financial position 31 December 2012 +—H=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 14) L B B A F (P #E14) 12,085 - 12,085
Other receivables (Note 19) HARENGK (BtiE19) 4,040 - 4,040
Financial assets at fair value through o EEERE G R - 1,815 1,815
profit or loss (Note 20) SRtEE (MffFh0)
Cash and cash equivalent (Note 21) Bl K SEY (FEkl) 99 - 99
Total é‘%—f' 16,224 1,815 18,039
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY -
GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Fra RIB R IfHE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 E£RTRYM - AEERAAT )

Company (Continued) AN ()
Other financial liabilities
L =R
RMRB’ 000
ANR¥T T
Liabilities as per statement of financial BRI R E 1Al
position 31 December 2013 BoFE—=4F - A=1+—H
Convertible notes EIECd s 95, 479
Other payables and accruals oAt AT A E A 13,013
Amounts due to subsidiaries REATF A 20, 369
Total CLl 128, 861
Liabilities as per statement of financial BRI R e
position 31 December 2012 PR+ ZA=1+—H
Convertible notes ARG 2 91, 875
Other payables and accruals AR A R B A 2 5,400
Amounts due to subsidiaries iR A 18, 443
Total &5t 115, 718

18 TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES - GROUP

18 BYORFAERR R - AEE

2013 2012

TER-AE TETE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ANEET T ARETT
Trade receivables REUCHR R 5, 643 5,573
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables W IRE (4, 366) (4, 366)
Note receivables eV SR 40 2,328
Trade receivables and note — net eV R N B R S S iR A 1,317 3,535
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18 TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 18 R ERCR R - AL ()
(CONTINUED)
Ageing analysis of trade receivables, as at 31 December, BB -=ERCRORET A =+—H, Rl
2013 and 2012, based on sales invoice date and net of BEEE H A Bl B 2 R, Bl AT T
impairment, are as follows:
2013 2012
e et A i
RMB’” 000 RMB’ 000
AEWTIT ARWTIT
1-30 days 1-30K 40 241
31 -60 days 31 60K - 11
61-90 days 61-90R - -
91-180 days 91-180F - 585
Over 180 days 180K 1,237 370
Total =xis 1,277 1,207
The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days o its ALEGTE P IERBR BRI TR,
trade customers.

The carrying amount of trade receivables is considered as
reasonable approximation to their fair value. Impairment of
trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtors and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired. All of the Group’s trade receivables have been
reviewed for indicators of impairment.

In addition, some of the unimpaired trade receivables are past

R S e B A B (AR A P (A
TR B T ) A AR B S T AR R R
TR Rl 1o 20 B SRR A o 508 T A
O A UAERN R AR AR AR AR KA.
BB AR AL FTA B ERR R AR
i o

F5b, G FENORR EE IR IR R, R

due as at the reporting date. Ageing analysis of trade receivables BAR -
not impaired is as follows:
2013 2012
B O OO St
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTIC  ARW¥TIC
Neither past due nor impaired IR H AR B YE R UOIR R 40 252
1-30 days past due 130 R - -
31 -60 days past due #HA31 60 K - -
61-90 days past due 6190 & - 560
91-180 days past due 1H91-180 K - 115
Over 180 days past due but less than one year AR 180 KA/ 275 280
Over one year past due but less than two years BB 1 E D 2 24F 962 -
1,237 955
Total Bt 1, 277 1,207
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18 TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 18

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of approximately
RMB1,237,000 (2012: approximately RMB955,000)
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number
of independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default. These customers have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
management believes that no impairment is provided in
respect of these balances as there have no significant
changes in the credit quality of these customers and the
balances are considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As of 31 December 2013, trade receivables of approximately
RMB Nil (2012: Nil) were impaired and provided for. The
amount of the provision was approximately RMB4,366,000
as at 31 December 2013 (2012: approximately
RMB4,366,000). The individually impaired receivables
mainly related to customers, which are in unexpected

difficult economic situations. It was assessed that a

portion of the receivables is expected not to be recovered.

R I B BRI T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FC R O SY3R — A (4D

WoFE -+ HZ=1—H, MRS AR
1,237,0000C (& — 4 ANR#955,00070) ELitrHH
RIS . BRI 2R aAREMG RIT
R R T . BEE P RAEEEE RIF(EH
Ak, BRUATERTRCER EHELE Rl A NEE
PRERNES, RaEsE s AMER A BN
S ELA (e S B AR R T ] | A B T e A AL
PR HTAT o

RoF—ZF+H=+—H, BEBRHT AR
070 (—F— % ANREWoi) sHETHRSEM, W
R A AR A A W 4,366,0007C (—F 4 AR
#4,366,0000T) » HLAERIE FEMCIR R - 23k | i i
TR 2 MR R &, TEEAGRO e B 5 Rk
A AW

Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade e R B S AR B T T
receivables are as follows:
2013 2012
—E—-=E E T4
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AT ARKETT
At 1 January #—H—H 4, 366 37, 780
Trade receivables written off during the year S S RO R B - (33, 264)
Reversal of impairment loss of trade receivable T YRR R E R (FRE6) - (150)
(Note 6)
At 31 December B+=—H=+—H 4, 366 4, 366

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
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19 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - 19

GROUP AND COMPANY

The prepayments and other receivables are as follows:

2013 F R &
ANNUAL REPORT

BE R-=Ft+_H=+—HIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

TR B H A FRCR — A SRR A L F]

TR B H At AR R AN T -

Group Company
£ A
2013 2012 2013 2012
—F D CEF O TR -=F ZE-TF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ANR¥ETIE ARWTIC ARHETIT  ARETT
Prepayments TR 259 4, 081 - -
Deposits 4 564 408 - -
Other receivables (a) HAb K (a) 4,796 4, 364 8, 804 4,040
5,619 8, 853 8, 804 4, 040
Less: provision for W PRI (4, 154) (2, 730) (106) -
impairment
Total A5 1, 465 6, 123 8, 698 4,040

The movement in the impairment of other receivables,

deposits and prepayments is as follows:

TR B e LAt T R A 2 B )

Group Company
HEE vl
2013 2012 2013 2012
—R-=E R e
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AT AR ARKTIE  ARWMTIT
At 1 January w—H—H 2,730 11,113 - 8,907
Reversal of impairment AHHTE ] Y R 2 (69) (2, 400) - (2, 400)
Written off ASHIRESH A EIR R (440) (6, 507) (999) (6, 507)
Provision for impairment ASHER AR ER 2R 1,933 524 1, 105 -
loss recognised for the
year (Note 8)
At 31 December wt—_H=1+—H 4, 154 2,730 106 -
Related parties (a) (Note 29) RRGE 7 () (FFHE29) 32 41 4, 538
Amounts due from subsidiaries (a) T-ZF(a) - - 4, 160 1,640
Third parties el i 1,433 6, 082 - 2, 400
Total &5t 1, 465 6, 123 8, 698 4, 004

The carrying amounts of prepayments and other

receivables approximate their fair values.

(a)The amounts due are unsecured, non-interest bearing

and without fixed repayment term.

A

TAFTRSO HoAth R MGOR 2 SR E{EELH A fe

(@) AR R, S SRR E A ik
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20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

B e R B AR T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 EAAMEZRESRS SRRE — A58k

PROFIT OR LOSS - GROUP AND COMPANY AF]
Group and Company
ARG AT
2013 2012
RMB” 000 RMB” 000
AR¥TE ARMTIT
Foreign currency bond fund S 816 1,815
Total = 816 1,815

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within “investing activities” in the

consolidated statement of cash flows.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded in “other income” in
the statement of comprehensive income (Note 6).

The fair value of all financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is based on their current bid prices in an
active market as at the end of reporting period.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
denominated in US dollars.

Gain/(loss) on disposal of financial assets through profit

or loss:

BANEEESEERTR CHEEAS SRR
HERR R ETEBIAT

e R EEERIB SRS SMEENA R EES
RS TEA SRR THAM A FFIR (H
it6) o

P A A BEAEREATRZ A R EEREBHE
RIE BTS2 BB,

& R EEE R SRR SR E T b
fH.

HEHE A O EE S E 2 AR S B EE (18 ) 1K
Aii:

Group and Company
ASEE R AL T]
2013 2012
TR R4
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARFETET AR¥TT
Gain on disposal of foreign currency note fund HE M SR 42 s 184 37
Gain on disposal, net HERA REEEERR SR 184 37

B EN,
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20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 20 B BRI M FTIRZ SR — AW Fe Ak
OR LOSS-GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED) AE @
Since then the Company had adopted more conservative AR TR HULR <F IR 45 BRI R IR S i
investment policy and would only invest in foreign He HWoR-ZEN T -_F+-H=+—H
currency bond fund, the Company held financial assets at A A R EEERE AR IE Y S B h 34
fair value through profit or loss of approximately RMB N E#E816,0007T B FEHE 1,815,000 T & 8 4 AR
816,000 and RMB 1,815,000 as at 31 December 2013 FHEE,
and 2012 respectively which was all foreign currency
bond fund.
21  CASHAND CASHEQUIVALENTS-GROUPANDCOMPANY 21  H&RBSSEY —AEMBANT
Group Company
AEEHE N
2013 2012 2013 2012
et e S = =l S
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AE¥ETIT ARKETT ARKTIT ARWTIT
Cash at banks and on hand HUTTERR S s & 2, 596 2,771 690 99
Bank balances and cash were denominated in the TR S R Ty BRI
following currencies:
Group Company
ARG /N
2013 2012 2013 2012
TR TR DER-TE TR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AE#TIT ARW¥TT ARWTT ARWTT
HK dollars s - 84 - 85
Renminbi N 1, 876 2,640 - -
US dollars e 720 47 690 14
Total &t 2, 596 2,771 690 99
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22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 %3
Shown in the
Amount financial statements
Number of ! M RsRFETIR
ordinary shares  HK$'000 RMB’000
WEREE  mwTr  ARETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each EATHEEO. 1T RE R
Authorised: LR
At 31 December 2012 and 31 A S o S
December 2013 =t—HEF—=4F
+=—A=+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000 106,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRRTHED. 1 oY@
Issued and fully paid: THEEWGE
At 31 December 2013 PoF—-=Ft+-H=1+—H 366,108,664 36,611 38,681
At 31 December 2012 PoE - t+-HB=1+—H 364,308,664 36,431 38,536

A summary of the above movements in issued share
capital of the Company is as follows:

ERAAFRATRA RSB HTAT

2013 2012
B —t: o T
Number of Number of
issued ordinary issued ordinary
shares of Par value shares of Par value
HK$0.1 each HK$000 HEK$0.1 each HKS$000
FR B HIME S R TAME R
0.17CH AR [iikizh 01JCHEIERE  TE
BT T IT BITIRY  WETT

At beginning of the year
Issue of shares upon exercise
of share options (Note (a))

L)
MR B AT (384T
IR (fHE @)

B a B AR IHE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

364,308,664 36,431
1,800,000 180

364,308,664 36,431

At end of the year

EEN

366,108,664 36,611

364,308,664 36,431

(a)

Notes:

During the year, 1,800,000 (2012: Nil) new shares of
HKS$0.1 each were issued upon the exercise of options
under the share option scheme approved by the
shareholders of the Company.
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(a)

FfFE

AN TR R SR AR, A BT
FEPEETT1,800,00008 (ZF— 4 S RmE1E
S0, EIREAAREA R EE
[EE

22 SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 22 BE &
The Company has share option schemes as at 31 AR -ZFEFTZH =, KRN EER
December 2013, under which it may grant options to B HE R BHE T AR 2 B LABEA A R Z 7y
employees of the Group to subscribe for shares of the AR 943,200 (ZFE— T 118,800) ERJBEHE A
Company. During the year, 943,200 options were lapsed T8 B AR 21 T 5 R
(2012: 118,800) in connection with the cessation of
employment of certain employees and the expiry of
exercise period.
1,800,000 options (2012: Nil) were exercised during the AFEL,800,000 BRI (ZF -2 ) .
year. In 2013, the exercise of share options yielded the e J|—T4E | HITERERE TS A E AN R
proceeds of approximately RMB 581,000. H581,0007C o
Movements in the number of share options outstanding AT E AR ME TR ERE R
and their related weighted average exercise prices during TER-CERTE-TF+ T A= HIEFEY
the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows: M SRS T
Number of share options
S i F
Atl Granted Exercised Lapsed At
Exercise January during during the during the 31 December
Date of grant price Notes 2013 the year year year 2013
R fTHE(E BHE  ROZ—= AERH O RETH O REES O R F=F
F—H—H +oH=1—R
20 June 2003 HK$0.32 .
—FP=FAA-+E ospgre 0 © 0 27000 ) - 2720000
20 June 2003 HK$0.40 ..
—®F=HAATHE ooy 0@ 1800000 1,800,000 - ]
2 March 2005 HK$0.52
—EEFEE=H—R 0,523 T (iii) 880,400 - 30,000 850,400
14 December 2005 HK$0.45 .
—gEHEE+—A+0E oasmre W 72:000 ] - 72000
10 August 2006 HK$0.36
—®EAEAATH  oselir V) 1,330,200 - 75,600 1,254,600
10 May 2007 HK$0.625 .
—zERA+HH 0.625¥ETT: (vi) 2,862,900 - 219,600 2,643,300
7 April 2009 HK$0.435 ..
—EE N H L 04357 (vit) 6,926,800 - 618,000 6,308,800
Total
ot 23,592,300 1,800,000 943,200 20,849,100

Ee®uEXHRAAEI103



2013 4 FE &

BE_ 2=+ A=1+—HIL4FE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

22 SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
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A ()

Number of share options

JHE R E
Atl Granted Exercised Lapsed At

Exercise January during during the during the 31 December
Date of grant price Notes 2012 the year year year 2012
HRER 1TREM B3 T E T REFH AAEITHE  ARAEERSY O R TFE 4

F—H—H +=-H=+—0
2071 2003 HK$0.32 .
j;__“%fz EAH—4E 03 ;%ﬁ i) 9,720,000 - . 9,720,000
20 June 2003 HK$0.40 .
—BE=FAA—+E odolw @ 1,800,000 - - 1,800,000
14 December 2005 HK$0.45 .
—FEFEAHNA o5 OV 72,000 - - 72,000
ggg;\t;giﬁﬁ +H g??ﬁgé ™ 1,366,200 - 36,000 1,330,200
EJ%I%}:/’{Z:O!;)JE A+AH E?;o 50 :?EQT% (vi) 2,873,700 - 10,800 2,862,900
1’%’%3%% Hen Eg’g;% (Vi) 6,998,800 ; 72,000 6,926,800
Total
e 23,711,100 - 118,800 23,592,300
=R
Notes: Pt -
(i) These options are exercisable at HEK$0.32 () GBS AT ENSE 28T (028 A

(RMBO0.28) per share in three trenches: the
maximum percentage of options exercisable
within the periods commencing from 1 January
2004 to 31 December 2004, from 1st January 2005
to 31st December 2005 and after 1st January 2006
are 30%, 60% and 100%, respectively. The options
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the grant date.
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SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

()

(vi)

(vii)

These options are exercisable at HKS$0.40
(RMBO0.35) per share in three trenches: the
maximum percentage of options exercisable
within the periods commencing from 1 January
2003 to 31 December 2003, 1st January 2004 to
31st December 2004 and after 1 January 2005 are
30%, 60% and 100%, respectively. The options
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HKS$0.52
(RMB0.46) per share: the share options
exercisable within the period commencing from 2
March 2005 to 1 March 2015. The options shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HKS$0.45
(RMB0.40) per share: the share options
exercisable within the period commencing from
14 December 2005 to 13 December 2015. The
options shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HKS$0.36
(RMBO0.32) per share: the share options
exercisable within the period commencing from
10 August 2006 to 9 August 2016. The options
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HKS$0.625
(RMBO0.55) per share: the share options
exercisable within the period commencing from
10 May 2007 to 9 May 2017. The options shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from
the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HKS$0.435
(RMBO0.38) per share: the share options
exercisable within the period commencing from 7
April 2009 to 6 April 2019. The options shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from
the grant date.
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B ()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

IR AT 0. 4037T (035
RHE) |, WA ZETEE: R SRR =EgE—
H—HEZE_FR=F}_H=1+—H. Z&
FNF—HA—HE_FENF+_HA=1—
AR —FFHFE—H—HLE, 55L130%;
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23 RESERVES —GROUP AND COMPANY 23 it — AR I EANT] 23 RESERVES—GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED) 23 i — AEEAEAT @)
(a) Group (a) LR (b) Company (b) AT
Share- Statutory Retained
based enterprise earnings/
payment Special Capital Statutory expansion  (accumulated
IESEIve TESErve TEServe TeEserve fund lOSSﬁS) Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 Share-based Capital Contribution Accumulated
paymentreserve reserve surplus losses Total
AR 4h5Ipe B HIEATE BERZE BAER) Gt RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ZHSfEE ARMTIC ARWTC ARWTC BEES (FEMEH) AEETIC .
el " * T RMee AR " DA BAG S ZatEA it
Z EA St AR#TIT AT IC N NEHET I
ARWEFIL
At January 2012 RoF—-—FE—F—H 3,920 6,039 1,818 3,803 6,986 (157,538) (134,972)
1 A —_
Total comprehensive AR T AT A8 AT - - - - - 3,207 3,207 At1 January 2012 R=%—=%"A—H 4001 1725 28011 (181.648) (147.905)
income for the year Total comprehensive income AEF RS EE - - - 12,053 12,053
for the year
Transactions with owners HraHEY S
Employee share option benefits  f7 E| B 77 365 - - - - - 365 Transactions with owners BT &8
Transferred to statutory reserve 7 423k E 4R - - - 18 - (18) - .
Acquisition of subsidiary LS L A e - - - - - (1,480) (1,480) Employee share option benefits e ERIRHEREF 365 - - - 365
Total transactions with owners ST H LR LH 365 - - 18 - (1,498) (1,115) Total transactions with owners RFA# A Gt 365 - - - 365
At 31 December 2012 and 1 1 s Y § et 4, , S , !
At 31 December 2012 and 1 A& T E T H = He285 6,039 1,818 3,821 6,986 (155,829) (132,880) tjmumyezm ; * hhﬁf:gfg—if = _+ H . o 1723 2ol (169:999) (135457
January 2013 Bt —#—=F—H—H
Total comprehensive loss AEEASHERSE - - - (9,474) (9,474)
Total comprehensive loss AR AR AT - - - - - (31,028) (31,028) for the year
for the year
Transactions with owners BT E NS
Transactions with owners B RIS Employee share option benefits F (o A - 436 - - 436
Exercise of employee share option 17 (IHHERT 525> - - 436 - - - 436 Total transactions with owners AN A - 436 - - 436
Total transactions with owners BEE A B ATt - - 436 - - - 436 At 31 December 2013 R
+=-H=+—H 4372 2,161 28,011 (179,069) (144,525)
At 31 December 2013 S | 4,285 6,039 2,254 3,821 6,986 (186,857) (163,472)
=+—H
Statutory reserve LA

Pursuant to the Company Law of the PRC, articles of

IR B A FIE R AR A T R, AL R
AR e B O U e R 2 ¥ B Y 1090 2 L ZE ¥ SE

association and board resolutions of the Company, the
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Company provides 10% from its net profit for the year
determined in accordance with China Accounting
Standards for the statutory surplus reserve until the
balance of this reserve reaches 50% of the paid-up share
capital. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to reduce
any losses incurred or to increase share capital of the
Company. Statutory surplus reserve balance should not
fall below 25% of the registered capital after any such
shares issuance.

AT, BEREEEARESAATRMEARM50%
yike BEAMA AEMEALFE TN EE (MG
) MRS BIEAATIRAE, EARETAFIRAE
IR S T A R AR D A A R IR A 2596
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RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY(CONTINUED) 23

Statutory enterprise expansion fund

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
the subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC
shall appropriate 5% or 10% of its net profit after tax as
the statutory enterprise expansion fund. The director shall
have discretion in determining the percentage within the

range specified by the relevant PRC laws and regulations.

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the differences between
the nominal value of the shares of VP (BVI), the
company which was the holding company of the other
members of the Group prior to the Group Reorganisation,
and the nominal value of the company’s shares issued
thereof pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the additional
contributions made by the shareholders of the Company
prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange and the additional contributions made by the
minority shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company
during the year.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the net assets of the subsidiaries and
the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise share premium, capital reserve,
contributed surplus and accumulated profit. In
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
dividends shall be payable out of the profit or other
reserves, including the share premium account, of the
Company and, under the Companies Law (2002
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company must be
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business immediately following the distribution of
dividend.
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24 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS - GROUP AND

24 HAeWBAEREAERNE - AEEAEATF

COMPANY
Group Company
AR A ]
2013 2012 2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TE - CEFE T CE-EE CFE
AR¥TT AR¥TT ANE#TIT ARWETT
Other payables HAbFEATER 15,978 13,621 7,348 3,818
Amounts due to subsidiaries AT T-AF) - - 20,369 18,443
Accrued expenses BT B 6,601 3,643 5,665 1,582
Total BF 22,579 17,264 33,382 23,843
Related parties (Note 29) By 2,988 2,793 7,103 3,573
Subsidiaries TAHE] - - 20,369 18,443
Third parties vl 19,591 14,471 5,910 1,827
Total &af 22,579 17,264 33,382 23,843

25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES - GROUP AND COMPANY

25 T HBR s — AR AIAAT]

Group and the Company
ARG R AT

2013 2012
RMB’000  RMB’000
R ZFTF
ARWTIT ARKTIT

Current WEN

Non-current el ]

95,479 -

- 91,875

At 31 December 2013, the carrying amount and fair value
of the convertible notes for the Group and the Company
amounted to approximately RMB 95,479,000 (2012:
approximately RMB 91,875,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s

convertible notes are denominated in Swiss Francs.

B oF -t A=+ —H, REEARAF
R ESENEREM A RAEHEAO S R
95,479,00070 (= F——4F: ANR¥91,875,00070)
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25 CONVERTIBLE BOND - GROUP AND COMPANY 25 T — AL EMAMARAT ()
(CONTINUED)

The movement of the convertible notes are as follows: AR R T

Group and the Company
AR B A ]
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
TE-EE CFE-TE
AR¥Fr ARWTT
At beginning of the year LaE] 91,875 106,786
(Loss)/gain arising on revaluation nJE AR EN (SR /ER 3,943 (16,283)
of convertible notes

Exchange realignment FE i85 (339) 1,372
At end of the year AR 95,479 91,875

On 10 September 2007, the Company issued notes of an
aggregate principal amount of CHF15,000,000. Unless
previously redeemed, repurchased and cancelled or
converted, any outstanding convertible notes shall be
redeemed at the redemption amount (110% of the
principal amount outstanding of the convertible notes) on
the date falling on the fifth anniversary of the date of
issue of the convertible notes. The notes bear interest at
the rate of 3.5% per annum and payable annually.

On 4 September 2012, an extraordinary resolution was
passed by the majority of notes holders in accordance
with the terms of the convertible notes to approve the
extension of the convertible notes to 10 September 2015
with an increase in interest rate from 3.5% to 4% per
annum. The extension of the convertible notes was also
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 20 September
2012.

The conversion price shall be in Swiss Francs that will be
equivalent to 130% of the average closing prices of the
shares of the Company as published in the daily quotation
sheets published by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for 30 consecutive trading days up to and
including the fifth business day prior to the closing date
per share.

The noteholders will have the right to convert, at the
conversion price, the whole of the principal amount of the
convertible notes into shares at any time and from time to
time, from the date of issue of the convertible notes.
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25

CONVERTIBLE BOND — GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

Noteholders may at any time during the period on or after
the date of issue of the convertible notes and prior to the
close of business on the maturity date or (i) if the Company
shall have exercised its rights to redeem the convertible
notes (tax redemption or early redemption), then up to the
fifth business day preceding the date fixed for such
redemption, (ii) if the Company shall be in breach of its
obligations under the terms of the convertible notes (event
of default), then up to the time when the convertible notes
become due and repayable to convert, at the conversion
price, the whole or any part of the convertible notes held by
the noteholders into conversion shares.

The carrying amounts of convertible notes approximated
their fair value.

As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the liability
component, included in current borrowings, of the

convertible notes was calculated using effective interest
method at the rate of 15.01%.

As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the derivative
component of the convertible notes was calculated using
the Monte Carlo Simulation Model. Any change in the
major inputs into the Monte Carlo Simulation Model will
result in changes in the fair value of the derivative
component.

The change in fair value of the convertible notes during the
year resulted in a loss from changes in fair value of
approximately RMB 3,943,000 (2012: gain of
approximately RMB 16,283,000), which has been recorded
as “loss on revaluation of convertible notes” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Interest and other expenses of approximately RMB
4,108,000 (2012: approximately RMB3,715,000) has been
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in
respect of the convertible notes for the year ended 31
December 2013.

On 26 May 2014, the Company entered into a term sheet
("Term Sheet") with certain holders of the Convertible
Notes who hold the majority of the voting rights attached to
the Convertible Notes (the "Majority Noteholders").
Pursuant to the terms of the Term Sheet, all parties have
agreed to settle all claims and mutually release each other
from any further liabilittes or obligations under the
Convertible Notes. More details will be negotiated with
Majority Noteholders.
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26 SHORT TERM BANK BORROWING 26 KA 27 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 27 BBELTSRE &)
Group and the Company 2013 2012
2013 2012 SER-TE CHR-TA
RMB’000 RMB’000 ARHETIT ARETIT
TR = CF
AR#ETT AR¥TT . . ) . .
Operating cash flow before movement in working capital i eEa (8, 720) (591)
Bank borrowing SHHERE 3000 3000
— Decrease /(increase) in work-in-progress —TEEE R/ G 2,662 (12, 553)
A subsidiary of the Group established a short term bank Z:%@_TE?{&H—J% EF @Iﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘%ﬁlT ﬁﬁﬁ —Decrease/ (increase) in trade receivables — PR B B Bk () 2,218 (1,949)
borrowing with Bank of Beijing in China with amount of A EHE300%5 TE I . RS I o A R4 ~Decrease in prepayments and other receivables — RIS R 2,794 426
RMB3,000,000. The borrowing bears interest at a variable P L R R At A — Increase in other payables and accruals — Al BT 3 A HE A 2 FH 3 I 1,207 3,548
rate based on the Bank’s Prime Rate. The borrowing is VR AR — (Decrease)/increase in receipts in advance — FRWCHRER (i) /84 Tn (1, 731) 8,329
secured by a personal guarantee of a director of the Group.
Cash used in operations SEETHzHE (1, 570) (2,790)
27 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 27 RBELHRERE
28 Operating lease commitments 28 BEHM RN
2013 2012
RMB*000 RMB’000 At the reporting date, the Group had commitments for RIREH, AEERBARABESE. Db TR
—E—4 —B——AF future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable W] HSRAR A A R 2 R AR A 420 F
ANEMTT ARETT operating leases in respect of machinery, land and
buildings which fall due as follows
{Loss)/profit before income tax AT (EHD /A (30,966) 3,231
Adjustments for: AR
— Depreciation (Note 12) —3 8 (fEEL2) 1,790 2,713
— Dividends income — i SN (33) (42) 2013 2012
—Loss/(gain) on revaluation of convertible notes (Note 25) — AR R, (BFD (EEes) 3,943 (16,283) RMB*000 RMB*000
—Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment — e R R (HEke) 546 (56) “F—=F “F-TF
(Note 6) ARHTIT AR¥TIT
— Exchange (gain)/loss — B 5 (FF) /i (339) 1,372 No later than 1 year N 404 20
— Impairment loss on work-in-progress —EERREER 10,202 6,653 Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years AR EHAFLN 2,363 390
— Impairment loss on other receivables — A BRI i R 1,933 524 Later than 5 years iR ) i
— Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value — A RAEEBRIRR IR SRk (184) 37
through profit or loss (Note 20) EEMENE (20
—Reversal of impairment loss on trade — MEMUER S IR 4R - (150) Totsl P 3,257 810
receivables
—Reversal of impairment loss on other receivables — ot R R A 1R 2R R (69) (2,400)
— Interest expenses (Note 7) —FIS#EA (BHRED 4,265 3,768
— Interest income (Note 7) —FI SN (BHRET) (8) (22)
— Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair — AP EEIRE LR, SRl E 200 (227)
value through profit or loss N FEMERER (D
— Employee share option benefits (Note 9) — 1 B iR (PRED) - 365
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 BRESE 5
(a) The following transactions were carried out with related (a) BT S MIEN L2 G,
parties:
Nature of transactions Nature of transactions 2013 2012

B A ] 35 5 RMB’000 RMB’000
F AR CFE AR
AR#TT AR¥TT
S () AR AH Rental expense 120 120
Post market services income - 5,300
AR (e rg) H IR A HEEA 120 120
i S AR N B 5,300

Those related parties are under common control of a
director, Mr. William Xia GUO, of the Company.

() Save as disclosed above, as at the reporting date, the Group (b)
had the following major balances with its related parties:

FESEA I A A A F) — i A S R

TR HH, Aeg [ BB A BUF BRI 2k
TR

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
e
ARHFIL ARKTIL

Prepayment: TR K

Other related parties N - 12
Other receivables: HoAth i -

Other related parties Al [ 86 2 ) 32 29
Other payables: Hofia AT :

Amount due to #5-F B M EEEEA R A H] REAT Pl A AR IR ZE R PR A ) 383 393
Amount due to {57428 G R) H PR 2 FEAT B R 2E () PR 4 ) - 806
Amount due to It B2 EABELEYERFRAT BT ELEFNBEEYERFRAF 873 658
Amount due to L5 2 AW B SER A R A A JEA bR S A B SR A PR A | 598 919
Amount due to #§ [ BRI AE R AT b A R A A g LR E AT A R A A 1,133

Other related parties Al A 1 17

Those related parties are under common control of a
director, Mr. William Xia GUO, of the Company.
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

On 26 May 2014, the Company entered into a term sheet
("Term Sheet") with certain holders of the Convertible
Notes who hold the majority of the voting rights attached
to the Convertible Notes (the "Majority Noteholders").
Pursuant to the terms of the Term Sheet, all parties have
agreed to settle all claims and mutually release each other
from any further liabilities or obligations under the
Convertible Notes. More details will be negotiated with
Majority Noteholderso
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TR
FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS £
Year ended 31 December
BE+-H=1—HIFEE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
CEENAE R RE S RLE sy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
MNR¥TIT NE¥ETIC ARETT ARWTT ARWFT
Turnover 2 3 47,308 37,687 18,099 28688 14,931
(Loss)/profit before tax BRARAT CESHED) /EF 6,310 (55.422) (149,772) 3,231 (30,966)
Income tax FIH (277) (1,838) (4,024) (113) (53)
(Loss)/profit after tax before BRI R FT AR B AR 6,033 (57,260) (153,796) 3,118 (31,019)
non-controlling interests B CESHD /HF)
Non-controlling interests A I RE 243 332 1,361 89 (&)
(Loss)/profit for the year FBR AR T RE A 48 2 A 6,276 (56.928) (152,435) 3,207 (31,028)
after non-controlling interests FE CE#D /#iF
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BENAE
As at 31 December
P+ A=+—HILEE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
ERENAF LR R SEeeE DR ZR|=HF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TIT MNEHETIT ARWETIE ARWTT ARETR
Total assets less current MO A LR A6 191,237 164,330 (96,752) (2,312) (124,625)
liabilities
Non current liabilities e AR (78,333) (108,005) - (91879 -
(Corporate bonds payable) A A FE T
Non-controlling interests JepemER (1,377) (1,045) 316 (157) (166)
Shareholders’ funds e R 111,527 55,280 (96,436)  (94,344) (124,791)
Notes to the financial summary: A BB

1  The results for each for the five years ended 31 December 2013 have
been prepared on a combined basis to indicate the results of the Group
as if the Group structure, at the time when the Company’s shares were
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, had been in existence throughout the years
concerned. The results for each of the four years ended 31 December
2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 have been extracted from the
corresponding audited annual financial statements.

This financial summary indicates the consolidated results of the Company
and its subsidiaries with effect from 1 January 2009 or since their
respective dates of incorporation or acquisition, whichever is a shorter
period. The consolidation statement of financial position at 31 December
2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 are the combination of the statement of
financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries at 31 December
2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013. In the opinion of the directors, the
resulting consolidated financial statements give a more meaningful
view of the results and state of affairs of the Group as a whole.
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